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China Fortune Holdings Limited

FREEEERERAR

Corporate Profile

REHN

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
sells and distributes mobile phones and digital products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was
established in Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
code: 8040) on 16 February 2000, and successfully transferred
to the Main Board (Stock code: 110) on 26 January 2004. The
Group has a strong shareholder background and well operational
and professional management team.

In 2007, the Group acquired Zhuhai Reminda Telecom
Equipment Company Limited which was a company selling
mobile phones and telecommunication equipments in the PRC.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

In 2019, Beijing Feiying accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Company and can consolidate Beijing Feiying’s results into the
Group’s accounts. The Group tap into the used mobile phones
and mobile app market in the PRC.

In 2020, the Group has stripped off the used mobile phones
and mobile app market in the PRC. Beijing Feiying no longer be
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company and account for it
as an associate of the Company.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
“Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and

services providers in the region.
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Chairman and Executive Director
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Mr. Gao Fei (Resigned on 1 September 2020)

Mr. Hou Zhenyang (Appointed as a Non-executive Director on
1 September 2020 and re-designated on 19 April 2021)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Bao Kang Rong (Resigned on 1 September 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit (Resigned on 1 September 2020)

Dr. Lo Wai Shun

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie (Appointed on 1 September 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. So Chi Kai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie (Committee Chairman)
(Appointed on 1 September 2020)

Mr. Lam Man Kit (Resigned on 1 September 2020)

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Dr. Lo Wai Shun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie (Committee Chairman)
(Appointed on 1 September 2020)

Mr. Lam Man Kit (Resigned on 1 September 2020)

Mr. Lau Siu Ying

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Dr. Lo Wai Shun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Wang Yu

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit (Resigned on 1 September 2020)

Dr. Lo Wai Shun

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie (Appointed on 1 September 2020)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
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63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung
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China Fortune Holdings Limited
FEREERERAT

Corporate Information

REEM

CHINA HEAD OFFICE

Room 9008, Yong Xin Building
887 Huai Hai Zhong Road
Huangpu District

Shanghai, PRC

SHANGHAI OFFICE

Room 328, Xin Mao Lou

2 Tai Zhong Nan Lu
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone
Shanghai, PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong law:
Franki Ho & Associates

As to Bermuda law:
Conyers Dill & Pearman
PRINCIPAL BANKERS
China Construction Bank
China Merchants Bank
ICBC (Asia)
CORPORATE WEBSITES
www.fortunetele.com
www.chinafortune.com
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Business Structure
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China Fortune

Holdings Limited

RERY

Investment

BRRE

Telecommunication

WiRRY

Resources

BE - WERMERR
ESTILEBHHRR
Diversified business
development through
investment,
merger and acquisition

WEZIREIR - FK
BRRERRE
Exploration, exploitation,

refining and asset investment

of mineral resources

EAREES RO
Trading and distribution
of telecommunication
equipment
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Corporate Milestones
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The former trading arm of the
Group - Express Fortune Limited
(“EFL”) was founded by Mr. Lau Siu
Ying and his brothers in Hong
Kong.
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JUL

1992

Commenced Fortune

Telecom Group’s franchise
retail business in the PRC.
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EFL became one of Nokia’s

earliest authorised
distributors in the PRC.
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FEB
16

Listed on the GEM Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
8040).

REEBZFGEM L
(BB - 8040) °

DEC

A US$12 million syndicated
loan was successfully
arranged.

X% HE—1812,000,0003
TLZREE -

Completed the acquisition
of 51% shareholdings of

Synergy Pacific (Holding)

Limited (“Synergy Pacific”).
TR RIEES
BRRE ([REEH] )
2 51%HE

()

MAY

Fortune Shanghai was
acknowledged by Shanghai
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone Management
Committee as one of the
best enterprises for
commodity sales.

KB DR HBINSRER
REEZESRAEMINE
BEBLEZ—-

SEPT

A HK$160 million
syndicated loan was
successfully arranged.

R I % HE—T8160,000,0007%5
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TEERE

SEPT FEB

A US$16 million syndicated loan
was successfully arranged.

BRI Z2HE—1816,000,0005% 7T 2 SR E
o

Contracted to acquire 51% stake in
Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment
Company Limited (Bkif & 1RE 58
& HIE/AF) and completed the

acquisition in October 2007.
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MAR
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The Group has achieved a record
annual sale of 2.1 million sets of
mobile phones and a record net
profit over HK$60 million.

AEEBITE8H2,100,0008 BB EE
FB3860,000,00078 TLALFIHATER °

Fortune Shanghai increased its
share capital from US$6 million to
US$25 million.
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HNZE25,000,0005 7T ©

SEPT

Formed a joint venture with
TeleChoice International Limited for

the Nokia fulfillment business.

JUN

EiTeleChoice International Limitedfi
V—EEEAT ) EFEEETAEE

DEC

For a consecutive year, Fortune

Shanghai was again acknowledged
by Shanghai Waigaoqgiao Free Trade
Zone Management Committee as
one of the best enterprises for
commodity sales.
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Successfully completed the

acquisition of 100% shareholdings
of Synergy Technologies (Asia)
Limited, and the disposal of 46%

OCT
8

—_

shareholdings of Synergy Pacific.
B3 e Uk EE Synergy Technologies
(Asia) Limited,2 100%% 1 . H & &
R 246%RHE -

Name changed to China Fortune
Holdings Limited.

FRRTEREZRRABRAF -

___@__@_________

JAN
26

JAN

Listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
110).
RBEBBRZAERLET (R
AR5 - 110) -

Newly obtained the
nationwide distributorship of
Samsung mobile phones.

HRE=ERYEE EE

SEPT

Successfully obtained the
Fulfillment Distributorship
for all Nokia Stores in the
PRC.
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DEC

23

Completed the
acquisition of 50.8%
interest in Sifa Mining
which has the right to
conduct mining
activities in a Celestite
(Strontium), Zinc and
Lead mining site
situated in the Hubei
Province, the PRC.
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

FREEEERERAR

Chairman’s Statement

EFEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present to our shareholders the consolidated results and
prospects of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

REVIEW

In 2020, the international political and economic environment
was complicated and changeable, the outbreak and spread
of the COVID-19 epidemic brought unprecedented impact
upon global economic and social activities, the pandemic also
struck a heavy blow to the production and operation of various
industries, as well as to the global economy. Benefiting from the
effective pandemic prevention and control policies of the China
government, the pandemic had been well controlled in China,
and the China’s economy had gradually come out of the trough
with unchanged long-term economic favorable fundamentals.
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Looking back to 2020, the global economy has been in deep
recession. Apart from COVID-19 epidemic, the China economy
was also suffered from international trade plunged and financial
market fluctuated. The mobile phone market in China was
undoubtedly been hit hard, fortunately, the Chinese government
responded appropriately with prompt timely prevention and
control measures and quickly brought the pandemic under
control. During 2020, the sales of consumer products market
gradually picked up in the second half of the year. However, due
to the suspension of production and operation and lockdown
measures across the nation in respond to the pandemic
during the plum rain season in the first half of the year and the
lagged recovery of prices and sales, the revenue still showed a
decrease as compared to 2019.

Customer’s focus is expected to shift gradually from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience
and, in this regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain
stores have advantages under the high internal consumption.
In order to diversify the business of the Group, we have been
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the mobile phone
industry for decades, and the potential for mobile phone related
business development is surely enormous and sustainable.
The Group will continue to strengthen its major business area
including big data, mobile phone operating system and mobile
internet.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2020, due to COVID-19 epidemic and global economy
recession, the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 decreased by approximately 25% to HK$80.9 million when
compared with the year ended 31 December 2019. Loss for the
year amounted to HK$4.6 million when compared with loss of
HK$32.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

FREEEERERAR

Chairman’s Statement

EFEHREE

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in China. As China is one of
the strongest countries in terms of economic performance, and
with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Although there is keen competition in the industry, development
potential is still enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen
our existing relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for
further cooperation opportunities.

Apart from strengthening our current principal business in
the mobile phone business, the Group has stripped off the
used mobile phones and mobile app market in September
2020. The decision was made after careful decision by the
Board in consideration of (i) the uncertainty of the renewal of
a new agreement between Beijing Feiying and Tencent after
the expiration of the last agreement; and (ii) the uncertain
prospects of Beijing Feiying after the expiration of the agreement
with Tencent, upon the termination of the Acting-in-Concert
Agreement with Mr. Gao and the resignation of Mr. Bao as the
non-executive Director of the Company. As such, Beijing Feiying
can no longer be accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company
and will account for it as an associate of the Company from 1
September 2020 onwards.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 throughout 2020 would foreseeably
have an adverse impact of the worldwide wholesale, retail
environment and as well as our business. There is an ongoing
concern on customers spending power and weakening the
global economy. In 2021, the Group will continue to actively
seek and grasp market opportunities and increase the depth
and breadth of our sources of revenue in order to generate
satisfactory returns for shareholders on a continuous basis.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all staff members and management team for their
dedication and contribution, and to our shareholders and
business partners for their support. Looking forward, the Group
will keep a closer watch on changes in the market and seize
development opportunities that can generate maximum value for
the Company and its shareholders.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

FREEEERERAR

Management Discussion and Analysis
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
total revenue of HK$80.9 million, which was approximately
HK$27.6 million or 25.4% lower than the revenue of HK$108.5
million reported in 2019. The decrease in Group’s revenue was
mainly due to the decrease in revenue from mobile phone trading
business in PRC.

The Group’s revenue was derived from mobile phone trading
business in PRC and promotion of the mobile application to
consumers in current year while revenue was entirely derived
from mobile phone trading business in PRC in previous year.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue contribution
from promotion of the mobile application to consumers was
HK$1.2 million, representing 1.5% of the total revenue of the
Group, whereas mobile phone trading business contributed
HK$79.7 million or 98.5% of the total revenue of the Group.
For the mobile phone trading business, revenue contribution
from Shanghai, Hong Kong and Zhejiang was HK$66.6 million,
HK$9.2 million and HK$3.9 million respectively, representing
82.3%, 11.4% and 4.8% of the total revenue of the Group.

The decrease in revenue was due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 in early 2020, it has been intensifying and spread
across the PRC and have an adverse impact on wholesale and
retail of mobile phone markets. The COVID-19 outbreak results
global economic slowdown and sluggish consumer spending
resulted in slower sales in 2020. Besides, China’s consumers
pulling back on spending have taken a toll on its mobile phone
retail market which is stalled and declining, the sales of the
Group were scaled back in 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 61.3%, from HK$1.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to HK$0.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease of gross
profit was due to the scaled back in Group’s performance on
mobile phone trading business and promotion of the mobile
application to consumers business in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to outbreak of COVID-19 which resulted China’s consumers
pulling back on spending and the keen competition in the
mobile phone retail market, the Group’s gross profit margin
was decreased from 0.9% for the year ended 31 December
2019 to 0.5% for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such
decrease was due to the increased bargaining power from
telecommunications chain stores and mobile carriers which
purchasing mobile phone and underperformance of promotion
of the mobile application to consumers business which led to a
lower gross profit margin.

Other income

Other income was approximately HK$0.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase of HK$0.3
million or 56.1% when compared to approximately HK$0.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase
was mainly due to increase of interest income and other
miscellaneous income.

Other gains and losses

We had a net gain of HK$11.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 and a net loss of HK$12.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the net gain mainly consisted of gain on deemed disposal
of subsidiaries of HK$6.3 million, gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of HK$3.1 million, write back of business tax payables upon
deregistration of a subsidiary of HK$0.9 million and recovery
of impairment loss on trade and other receivables of HK$1.2
million. The turnaround from net loss to net gain in current year
was mainly due to an impairment loss recognised in respect
of plant and equipment of HK$5.2 million, impairment loss on
goodwill of HK$6.0 million were recognised in 2019, while no
such loss was recognised in 2020.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs were approximately HK$0.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, significant increase when
compared to HK$20 thousand for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase was mainly due to the increase in salaries
and allowances and transportation expenses during the current
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by 10.3% to
HK$15.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 when
compared to last year of HK$17.3 million, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in depreciation and rental expenses.

Finance costs

During the year ended 31 December 2020, finance costs
amounted to HK$1.2 million, while HK$0.6 million of finance
costs was recorded during the year ended 31 December 2019.
The increase of finance costs was due to the imputed interest
on loan from a related party, interest on bank borrowing wholly
repayable within one year and interest on lease liabilities in
current year.

Income tax (credit)/expense

As set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements,
income tax credit amounted to HK$4.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, as compared to income tax expense of
HK$35 thousand in last year. The turnaround of tax expense
to tax credit in current year was mainly due to the release of
provisional tax liabilities upon deregistration of a subsidiary of
HK$4.6 million.

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the factors set out above, the Group’s profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$0.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, as
compared to loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$26.1 million in last year.

Earnings/(loss) per share

The basic earnings per share was HK$0.23 cents in current year
as compared to the basic loss per share of HK$26.98 cents
(Restated) in last year.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group held various
unlisted equity investments and unlisted fund investment
engaged in developing mobile devices and operating system,
manufacturing, distribution of mobile devices and property
development in different jurisdictions.

Inventories

Inventories of HK$26 thousand as at 31 December 2019 and no
inventory was recognised as at 31 December 2020. The Group
will continue to apply strict policy in inventory control in the
future.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables of the Group decreased by 80.1%
from approximately HK$16.5 million as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$3.3 million as at 31 December 2020, primarily
due to settlement of trade receivables and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$30.1
million as at 31 December 2020 as compared to HK$18.2
million as at 31 December 2019, without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital, cash flow generated from its operation. During the
year, there was no material change in the funding and treasury
policy of the Group. The Group considers there is no material
potential currency exposure as the majority of its revenue and
expenses are derived and incurred in Renminbi in the PRC. It is
the treasury policy of the Group to manage its foreign currency
exposure whenever its financial impact is material to the Group.

Trade and other payables

The trade and other payables of the Group decreased by 28.2%
from approximately HK$30.7 million as at 31 December 2019
to approximately HK$22.0 million as at 31 December 2020,
mainly due to decreased in accrued salaries, prepayments from
customers and other payables to third parties along with its
business.
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Bank borrowing

No bank borrowing was recorded as at 31 December 2020,
while bank borrowing amounted to HK$4.5 million as at 31
December 2019.

Liquidity and gearing ratio

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$16.8
million or HK$0.17 per share when compared to HK$14.0 million
or HK$0.14 per share (restated due to the number of ordinary
shares has been adjusted for the share consolidation under
capital reorganisation and the Rights Issue completed in 2021)
as at 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had net current liabilities of approximately HK$1.9 million when
compared to net current liabilities of HK$6.9 million as at 31
December 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a
current ratio of 0.95 times (31 December 2019: 0.90 times). The
gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the ratio of the total long
term liabilities to the shareholder’s equity, was 1.70 and 1.32 as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any capital
expenditure contracted for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of leasehold improvements (31
December 2019: HK$0.2 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees (31 December 2019: nil).
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Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries or
associates

The Corporate Action, the Acting-In-Concert and the
Deconsolidation

Shanghai Yuanjia, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Other Beijing Feiying Shareholders started
contemplating on implementing change in control of the board
of Beijing Feiying in March 2019. Pursuant to the change in
control of the board of Beijing Feiying which became effective
on 27 December 2019, the board of directors of Beijing Feiying
shall comprise five members, of which two had been appointed
by Shanghai Yuanjia, Mr. Gao Fei has undertaken to vote in
concert with Shanghai Yuanjia by virtue of a signed Acting-in-
Concert Agreement entered into between Shanghai Yuanjia and
Mr. Gao Fei, and two which had been appointed by the Other
Beijing Feiying Shareholders. As a result of the change in control
of the board of Beijing Feiying, Shanghai Yuanjia shall be able to
control the respective board of directors of Beijing Feiying. As
such, Beijing Feiying shall be accounted for as a subsidiary of
the Company. No consideration has been paid or is payable by
the Company for the change in control of the board of Beijing
Feiying and there has not been any changes to the respective
equity interest held by Shanghai Yuanjia and the Other Beijing
Feiying Shareholders. The change in control of the board of
Beijing Feiying were agreed between Shanghai Yuanjia and Mr.
Gao Fei after arm’s length negotiations and allow the Group to
step up its participation in the operations and strengthen the
corporate governance of Beijing Feiying.
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Beijing Feiying is previously engaged in the recycling of used
mobile phones. In addition, Beijing Feiying has also entered
into a cooperation agreement with the mobile and internet
conglomerate, Tencent, for Tencent’s new mobile application,
which helps users transfer data from old phones to newer ones.
Under the cooperation agreement, Beijing Feiying receives 70%
of revenue generated from the mobile application by users.
As stipulated in the cooperation agreement, Beijing Feiying
is currently mainly to assist in the promotion of the mobile
application to consumers.

On 1 September 2020, Shanghai Yuanjia and Mr. Gao has
resolved to terminate the Acting-in-Concert Agreement entered
into between Shanghai Yuanjia and Mr. Gao. The decision was
made after careful decision by the Board in consideration of
(i) the uncertainty of the renewal of a new agreement between
Beijing Feiying and Tencent after the expiration of the last
agreement as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 June 2020; and (ii) the uncertain prospects of Beijing
Feiying after the expiration of the agreement with Tencent.
Furthermore, upon termination of the Acting-in-Concert
Agreement with Mr. Gao and the resignation of Mr. Bao as the
non-executive Director of the Company, Shanghai Yuanjia no
longer has control of the Board of Beijing Feiying. As such,
Beijing Feiying can no longer be accounted for as a subsidiary
of the Company and will account for it as an associate of the
Company.

Beijing Feiying has been reclassified as an associate of the
Group’s consolidated accounts from 1 September 2020
onwards. Beijing Feiying did not record significant revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and the deconsolidation
will not have material impact on the net financial position of
the Group as both the assets and liabilities of Beijing Feiying
will be deconsolidated from the Group’s financial statements
simultaneously.

Further details regarding the deconsolidation was set out in the
announcement dated 1 September 2020.
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Disposal of Chongging Yuanjia

On 29 September 2020, Shanghai Yuanjia, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Agreement
with Guangzhou Wanchuang, pursuant to which Shanghai
Yuanjia has agreed to sell and Guangzhou Wanchuang has
agreed to acquire the 51.0% of the share capital of Chongging
Yuanijia for a total consideration of approximately RMB5.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$6.5 million).

As Guangzhou Wanchuang have agreed to waive the balance
of approximately RMB2.6 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2.8 million) owed by Shanghai Yuanjia to Chongging Yuanjia,
the Group have record gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$3.1 million.

Further details regarding the disposal was set out in the
announcement dated 29 September 2020.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has in total 15 employees
as compared to 71 employees as at 31 December 2019.
Employees were remunerated according to the nature of their
job duties and market trend. The Group provided staff welfare
and fund contribution to its employee in accordance with the
prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. There was no
material change in the remuneration policy, bonus scheme and
share option scheme during the year. The Group has a share
option scheme under which the Company may grant share
options to the participants, including directors and employees,
to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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Subsequent events
Capital Reorganisation

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”), which involved:
() the share consolidation whereby every ten (10) authorised
and issued existing shares of HK$0.10 be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of HK$1.00; (i) the capital reduction
whereby the issued share capital of the Company be reduced
by (a) rounding down the number of consolidated shares in
the issued share capital of the Company to the nearest whole
number by cancelling any fraction of a consolidated share in
the issued share capital of the Company arising from the share
consolidation; and (b) cancelling the paid up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the then issued
consolidated shares such that the par value of each issued
consolidated share be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01; and
(iii) the share subdivision whereby every authorised but unissued
existing share of HK$0.10 be sub-divided into ten (10) adjusted
shares of HK$0.01 (the “Adjusted Shares”).

Further details regarding the Capital Reorganisation was set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 10 November
2020, 25 November 2020, 7 December 2020 and 7 January
2021 and the circular dated 15 December 2020.

Rights Issue

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$48.6 million, before the Set-off Arrangement
and relevant expenses, by way of the rights issue (the “Rights
Issue”), by issuing 91,777,944 rights shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.53 per rights share on the basis of one (1) rights
share for every one (1) adjusted shares held on the Record Date.

The Rights Issue was completed on 10 February 2021. The
net proceeds of the Rights Issue were approximately HK$15.6
million.
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Further details regarding the Rights Issue was set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 November 2020, 25
November 2020, 7 December 2020 and 7 January 2021, the
circular dated 15 December 2020 and the prospectus dated 19
January 2021.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year (2019: Nil).

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII™), there were approximately 1.6 billion subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end of 2020. While there are
continuing intense competitions among the major mobile phone
manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut the distribution
layers by directly supplying to the provincial distributors and
leading retailers with a view to increase their profitability.
Because of this, leading vendors have developed multi-channel
distribution models which include “national distribution”,
“provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct to operator”.
On the other hand, mobile carriers are key participants in the
mobile phone industry chain. The restructuring of mobile carriers
in past years and the issuance of 4G licenses have led to more
intense competition among the mobile carriers. By cooperating
with retailers, especially large mobile telecommunication chain
stores, the mobile carriers can benefit from the retailers’ in-depth
understanding of customer behaviors and spending preferences.
Through such cooperation, the customers will experience more
professional, convenient and integrated customer services.
Thus, large mobile telecommunications chain stores are
expected to become the main sales channel for the mobile
carriers for their bundled mobile phones.
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Although China, the world’s largest mobile phone market
reached a saturation point, the 5G economy has seen a huge
growth. The boom of 5G mobile phones comes as China
launched 5G commercialisation at the end of 2019 with the
nation’s telecom operators rolling out their 5G data plans.

China had already constructed approximately one million 5G
base stations and approximately 160 million of subscribers
using applications based on the 5G network by the end
of 2020. Moreover, China’s fixed-asset investment in the
telecommunications sector increased over 15% year-on-year
in 2020, approximately one third of total investment in the
sector for the 5G technology in China. Investment in 5G helps
the global economy overcome the effects of COVID-19 and
transition to a post-pandemic economic recovery, with upgrades
to 5G adding more than approximately US$600 billion a year
to the global economy by 2030. The COVID-19 outbreak in
China has driven a major chunk of the workforce online, it
made inevitable the huge market prospects for 5G network
investments and enabled 5G technology in China. Since the
beginning of the epidemic, China has witnessed the faster and
more extensive use of 5G in various fields.

Looking back at 2020, China’s mobile phone market declined
and scaled back due to the international trade conflicts
escalated, the impact of COVID-19 outbreak in China, the
uncertainties of economic development and China’s consumers
pulling back on spending, the decline is expected to continue in
the coming years but partially offset with the 5G development.

Business Review
Mobile Phone Business

The Group was involved in the business of trading, wholesale
and retail of mobile phones and telecom equipments in China.
As for the PRC market, its economy was slowdown since
2019. Yet, the continuous development of mobile phone market
business model intensifying competition in the retail industry and
the uncertainties arising from the emerging US-China trade war
and outbreak of the COVID-19 in China presented challenges
the development of the Group’s operations and performance.
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Customers focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience.
Customers will normally require services such as function
presentations, digital phone books synchronization and pre-
installing software, etc, in purchasing a mobile phone. In the
4G era, the convergence of mobile telecommunications and the
Internet also led to rapid development of value-added business
which requires the retail channels to advance from a pure sales
platform to an integrated service platform. In this regard, the
large mobile telecommunication chain stores have advantages.

Mining Business

The Group has once commenced mining site exploitation system
in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the expiration of
a 5-year mining operating permit on 25 September 2012, Sifa
Mining obtained a renewed mining operating permit for 2 years
(the “2-year Permit 2012-2014") from the Ministry of Land and
Resources of the PRC (FF#E A RHMEIE T & JEZ) (‘MLR"),
under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out exploration
activities only, but not exploitation activities. The 2-year Permit
2012-2014 was expired on 25 September 2014.

On 27 April 2015, a mining operating permit was granted by
MLR for a term of 2 years from 25 September 2014 to 25
September 2016 under which a restriction was added that no
exploitation activities were allowed but only exploration activities.
Such restriction imposed on the renewed mining permit was
basically the same as the previous mining permit which was
approved by MLR in 2012 whilst the application for mining
exploitation permit is a continuing process.

In the course of applying for further extension after expiry on
25 September 2016, the Department of Land and Resources of
Hubei Province of the PRC (the “DLR”) issued an announcement
(the “DLR Announcement”) published on 29 December 2017 in
respect of the deadline of application for renewal of the expired
mining operating permit.
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In the DLR Announcement, the DLR informed the owners of
the expired mining operating permits to furnish the application
procedures for the renewal before 28 February 2018. If the
owners fail to do so, they are responsible to deregister the
mining operating permits before 31 March 2018 by themselves
or the DLR will de-register the permits instead. The Group
was unable to furnish the application before the deadline and
therefore, instructed the Group’s lawyers to clarify with the DLR
the Group’s situation as to whether the Group would be allowed
to submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
future.

Despite great efforts to ascertain with the DLR by the Group’s
PRC lawyers, the Group had been unable to receive a clear and
favourable reply in this regard. As a result and prudent measure,
a full impairment of the mining right of HK$174.6 million and
related plant and equipment of HK$9.0 million had been made
whist all the related deferred tax liabilities of HK$41.1 million had
been derecognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Despite the fact that the above mining right will no longer have
any bearing on the financials of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018, the Directors strived to pursue the ultimate
stance of the DLR in respect of the above mining right in the
interests of the Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group, through
its PRC lawyer, has tried to approach DLR by telephone calls
and resubmission of the letter sent in February 2018 for the
clarification of the Group’s situation. However, DLR did not make
reply to the Group’s enquiries.

According to an online search made by the Group’s PRC lawyer
to the Ministry of Natural Resources of the PRC (A ZE A R4£H]
B B AE JRE6) on 20 February 2020, the status of the mining
operating permit has been displayed as “expired”.
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Therefore, the Group’s PRC lawyers have come to the opinion
that the mining operating permit has already expired and will be
unable to be renewed and hence be deregistered eventually. For
the avoidance of doubt, such opinion will not affect the financial
statements of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

Prepayments to suppliers and related legal proceedings

For the year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment loss of
HK$24.9 million was recognised for the prepayments in the total
sum of HK$33.7 million made to two mobile phone suppliers,
one in Guangzhou and another one in Chongqing by a subsidiary
of the Group in Shanghai.

The said subsidiary commenced arbitral proceedings and, on 14
January 2019, has obtained the final arbitral award of, amongst
others, HK$19.8 million, being the prepayment against the
Chongqing supplier. In the course of such arbitral proceedings,
a sum of HK$10.2 million has been repaid by such supplier.
After obtaining the arbitral award, the Group instructed PRC
lawyers to enforce the arbitral award, but was informed by the
PRC lawyers that, according to a notice by the Chongging
No.5 Intermediate People’s Court dated 25 October 2019, after
checking through the national wide network of the PRC Court
for enforcement against the Chongqging supplier, the Chongging
Supplier had no assets left to be enforced against.

The said subsidiary also commenced legal proceedings for
recovery of the prepayment of HK$14.8 million against the
Guangzhou supplier in the People’s Court in Guangzhou,
China. After the final hearing of the trial of the legal proceedings
instituted by the said subsidiary against the Guangzhou supplier
in the People’s Court in Guangzhou, the PRC, on 28 April 2019,
judgment has been entered into against such supplier in the
sum of about HK$12.7 million together with default charge and
legal costs. The Guangzhou supplier had filed an appeal against
such judgment, but the appeal was subsequently withdrawn
by the Guangzhou supplier. Therefore, the judgment is valid,
effective and executable for which enforcement proceedings was
commenced against the Guangzhou supplier.
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However, as informed by the PRC lawyers of the Group,
according to a notice issued by the People’s Court of Huangpu
District of Guangzhou dated 4 June 2020, after checking
through the national wide network of the PRC Court for
enforcement against the Guangzhou supplier, the Guangzhou
supplier had no remaining assets that could be subject
to enforcement proceedings to be carried out by the said
subsidiary. According to a decision issued by the Guangzhou
Intermediate People’s Court dated 19 June 2020, such Court
determined to accept an application for winding up filed by
another creditor against the Guangzhou supplier. In a later
decision issued by the Guangzhou Intermediate People’s
Court dated 26 October 2020, it was confirmed that the total
outstanding liability due by the Guangzhou supplier to the
creditors is in the sum of approximately HK$455 million.

Notwithstanding the above situations, the Group will explore all
possible means to recover the prepayments.

Prospects and Outlook

The China economy is showing a sign of slowdown resulting
from the US-China trade war that has simmered in 2020.
Though the phase one interim agreement has been made in
December 2019 to prevent a further escalation of the trade war,
it is expected that the next round of the negotiation between the
US and China would get tougher once they begin tackling the
thorny issues on which they had clashed. Furthermore, in early
2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 in China followed hard on
the heels of the phase one’s US China trade truce. The Group
expect the consumption and retail segment will continued to be
affected from the double blow of the US-China trade war and the
COVID-19 facing an uncertain future in the coming years.

In 2019, the mobile phone market in China was still strong but
its growth was obviously slowing down which resulted from the
trade pressure exerted by the US in the trade war, denting the
economic growth in China in 2020.
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However, the continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled
by a high internal consumption. As the world’s largest mobile
handset market, there were approximately 1.6 billion handset
subscribers in the PRC which benefit from preferential mobile
internet traffic policies. The significant increase in 4G users, 5G
users and Internet users implies that there are huge business
opportunities in both mobile application and mobile commerce.

China was currently the world’s largest 4G network and
continues to strive for further expansion. With a goal to add
new 4G base stations in previous years to improve signal
coverage in buildings, elevators, and other indoor space, as
well as on railways and expressway. Since the Group has been
in the related mobile phone industry for decades, big data,
mobile phone operating system and mobile internet would be
surely the key business areas that the Group is interested in. As
the technology for 5G telecommunications networks matured
and was ready for takeoff demand for related equipment has
remained robust. Recent developments in the China market
along with anticipation of aggressive activity from the mobile
phone supply chain have caused us raised our Group short-term
5G forecast and expect that China will become the lead market
in terms of 5G volume. In light of the increasing uncertainties
in the global economy, the Group will closely monitor changes
in the economic environment and will be proactive and seize
opportunities in Hong Kong and ASEAN trading markets.

But the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020, the pessimistic
sentiment is developing regarding the macroeconomic and
the worldwide wholesale and retail environment, which would
foreseeably have an adverse impact on our business. It has been
intensifying and spreading across the PRC, weighing on the
PRC wholesale and retail markets. There is an ongoing concerns
regarding the development of mobile phone markets, which
hinders customers making sales order. Moreover, in view of the
weakening wholesale and retail markets, customers would tend
to make orders with lower average selling price, which would
possibly lower our Group’s gross profit.

The Group is actively looking for further opportunities which will
further enhance the shareholders’ value.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 57, is the founder, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 25 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampoa Group for approximately
5 years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a master degree of science in Information
Technology from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City Youth
Federation and the vice president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren
Association Limited.

Mr. WANG Yu, aged 55, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.
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Mr. HOU Zhenyang, aged 46, has over 15 years of experience
in real estate investment trust funds (REITs), real estate
development, management, acquisition, asset management,
insurance and business management. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and marketing and a master degree in
business administration from the University of Auckland, New
Zealand in 1997 and 2009, respectively.

Mr. Hou served as various position of KVB Global Capital
Limited from 2008 to 2014, including manager of the finance
department, vice chairman, head of the investment and
director. He joined as a managing partner of United States
RW Holdings REIT, Asia from 2015 to 2019. He is currently
the president of Asia Region of USA InvestCo from July 2019
and also the vice chairman of Irvine Family Offices, Asia from
July 2020. Mr. Hou has extensive experience in business
management, real estate operations, investment and financing
as well as risk management. Mr. Hou was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 September 2020 and
re-designated as an Executive Director on 19 April 2021.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 55, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in
real estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.
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Dr. LO Wai Shun, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2018. Dr. Lo
holds a bachelor degree in sciences and a master degree in
philosophy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and
a doctorate degree in Physics from Brown University, United
States of America (“U.S.A.”). He is also Adjunct Professor of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and Visiting Professor of
Peking University (School of Innovation and Entrepreneurship).
Dr. Lo is currently a general partner of DL Capitals, an angel
investment fund focusing on disruptive and exponential
technologies and has over 20 years of extensive experience
in various business fields including intellectual property
commercialization, business models innovation and technology
transfer. Dr. Lo had served as a non-executive director for
various listed companies in Hong Kong from 2000 to 2005.

Mr. FOK Wai Ming Eddie, aged 52, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 September 2020. Mr. Fok was graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of Science
in Engineering and the University of Wolverhampton with
a bachelor’s degree in laws and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has years
of practical experience in accounting, finance and corporate
management of both listed and unlisted companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Fok had also been a board member and/or company
secretary of a number of companies listed in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. SO Chi Kai, was appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company, the Financial Controller of the Group and the
authorised representative of the Company in April 2018. Mr.
So holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. So has worked in an international audit firm and various
public and private companies in Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. So
has extensive professional and senior managerial experience
in financial reporting, financial management and company
secretarial matters.

BT 60 RS- \FERAREME
RAERBBIUFATEZ -FELHEETER
XABREHBELBURTRRETZN LURE
FRERE (TXE) PRRKEYEZF L
LoD RBEPXABREBERIERAZR
(R RAI X2 TEHR -SELREAR
REX (FINBIRERERMERTZRER
EED) 2EBAB A IR EEFIRE (B
EAREEREC BERAAMEEME
B)BEABNFEELR B _TTTFET
TR F FHRIERESREBLTRATZ
FFHITES-

EEREE 2B RZTZZTFEAE—H
EZEABUERNTEEZ - BEERSEX
BMEIREBEEITEAKRNMAXRBEAZE
(University of Wolverhampton)EX{8 47 E2 4 &2
> TASBEHMABTEE - HNEB LT
REIRIFLEFRBZEH MBEREEXEEA
HEBLZFNERLR - EXRENATESHL
MABINESEENEB R HABMWE-

NEME

BrERE BN /\FHAEZEAST
ABZABME - TERAMBREREATZ
REARR -BRETERBFEBEIARBES (R
B XBETEU-RABTBIFMAEEE -
RALTETRN —BERBEF AT URSH
NBRINEEBAT IS BT ERFFH R
B -MBEERADWEFESNEEREEN
HEREREELR-



Annual Report 2020
SEBER

Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests
of all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG Code,
except for the deviations as stated in paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Re-election of
Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2020. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director of
the Company is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of the shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors of whom all are
independent as defined under the Listing Rules. Independent
Non-executive Directors constitute more than one-third of the
Board. The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent. To the best knowledge
of the Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on
pages 28 to 30.

Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director.
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Nomination of directors

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division
and function who is required to report back to the Board.
Functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
management are reviewed periodically. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the senior management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including monthly reports and recommendations on significant
matters. Should separate independent professional advice be
considered necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee,
independent professional services would be made available to
the Directors or such Board Committee upon request. The Board
has delegated some of its functions to the Board Committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved
for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material
contracts, significant appointments such as Company Secretary
and external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.

To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out
on pages 36 to 41.
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy.
seven Board meetings were held in 2020. At the Board
meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including the
Company’s annual and interim financial statements, proposals
for final and interim dividends (if any),
interim report. At least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors

annual report and

for all regular Board meetings and all Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
All minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are available to all Directors for inspection. During
the year, the Chairman of the Company has held a meeting
with all the Independent Non-executive Directors without other
directors presented.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in
2020 is set out below:

EFDESZRLUEER

EES TR EUERARAZHBEREE
KRB WA RAKREKE  —_ S TFZERITL
REEEEH -NESTEER L BEETERN
BAEE  OREAABZEERTHMBER
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PRS- 2REEMAATCHEST SR E
BR/O+EXBEN TEESNERPMAR
A EE FEESE R RBARAMET
Boaolfte Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ FR>ARBER
EHEEBEUIFNTESTRT —RgE HMh
BEREL—HBE-

R-EFZRF REFHREFE IR LR
FHWMT

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Directors = BERE
Chairman and Executive Director EFERPITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying 2 NERE 777
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Wang Yu * B/%&E 7/7
Mr. Gao Fei (Resigned on 1 September 2020) B WTE (R ZE-FFENH—HET) 2/3
Mr. Hou Zhenyang (Appointed as a Non-executive EEERE R —E_FFNH—HE 2/3
Director on 1 September 2020 and re-designated on Z1FEIFHITESE It —&FE _—14F
19 April 2021) 798+ HE51F)
Non-executive Director EHITES
Mr. Bao Kang Rong (Resigned on 1 September 2020) RS &%: (¢ —F _FF A H—HEHE) 0/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIERITES
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FiREE L 7/7
Mr. Lam Man Kit (Resigned on 1 September 2020) ~ MXEELE (R —F - FFAH—HEE) 3/3
Dr. Lo Wai Shun HAEEE LT 7/7
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie ERBELE 3/3

(Appointed on 1 September 2020) (R ZEZZFFENA—HEZT)



Annual Report 2020
SEBER

Corporate Governance Report

Chairman and chief executive officer

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Provision A.4 of the CG Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire
by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximise the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. Sufficient resources
are provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:

Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including salaries,
bonuses, share options and other plans. The Remuneration
Committee reviews and approves the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align
management incentives with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Fok Wai
Ming, Eddie, an Independent Non-executive Director, whom
has been appointed as Remuneration Committee Chairman
on 1 September 2020. The Company Secretary of the
Company serves as the secretary of the committee. Minutes
for the meetings are sent to the committee members within a
reasonable time after the meetings. The full terms of reference
are available on the Company’s website and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:

TEERBTE

HNZEENFRZERKEZEENER
FEZRZIBERWT :

|:m

Membership and Attendance MEREEER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members 541 BERH
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Lam Man Kit (resigned on 1 September 2020) MR E (R ZEZFF /5 —HEFT) 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan BIRIAE L 2/2
Dr. Lo Wai Shun HHEiEE L 2/2
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie* (Chairman) ERBPEE (FE) 0/0
(appointed on 1 September 2020) (R-EZZFFNA—HEZE)
Executive Director WITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying N s 2/2

*

No Remuneration Committee meeting was held after Mr. Fok Wai
Ming, Eddie was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 1 September 2020.

Two meetings were held in the year in which the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved
the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.

Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on page 167. Remuneration payable to members of
senior management is disclosed on page 199. At 31 December
2020, there were no outstanding shares in respect of which
options had been granted. Details of the Company’s share
option plan are disclosed on pages 188 to 189.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees
the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process and the system of internal controls
and risk management. The Board also delegated corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, including the
review and monitoring of (a) the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the
Company; and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and its compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. The full terms
of reference setting out the committee’s authority and its role
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie, an Independent
Non-executive Director, whom has been appointed as Audit
Committee Chairman on 1 September 2020. The Company
Secretary acts as secretary of the Audit Committee. Sufficient
resources are made available to the Audit Committee when
independent legal or professional advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part
in the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings in the year. The
Company Secretary prepared full minutes of the audit committee
meetings with details of discussions and decisions reached. The
draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all committee
members within a reasonable time after each meeting.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as
follows:

TEERBTE

BZZEENFRERTHREH - AIWE
EREBEZZEEER I BRI it
St EREMZRE -BELHERBNER
ERNSERE2AERERNEEXRTEREE
GHE -

BERZEENFAZERREEZEETNEN
BERZBRUNT

Membership and Attendance MEREEER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members 541 BERH

Independent Non-executive Directors BIAIERITES
Mr. Lam Man Kit (resigned on 1 September 2020) MR E (R ZEZFF /5 —HEFT) 4/4
Dr. Law Chun Kwan BIRIAE L 4/4
Dr. Lo Wai Shun HHEiEE L 4/4
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie* (Chairman) ERBPEE (FE) 0/0
(appointed on 1 September 2020) (W B ZZRF N H—HEZT)

*

No Audit Committee meeting was held after Mr. Fok Wai Ming,
Eddie was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
1 September 2020.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission
to the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the
CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended the Board to
adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2020. The
Audit Committee has also performed the aforesaid corporate
governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set
out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as secretary of the
Nomination Committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to
the Nomination Committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:

TEERBTE

REEZEENRFRAZERKEZEGNEL
FEZRZBERNTE

Membership and Attendance MEREEER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members & BERY
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BNERE (£/F) 2/2
Mr. Wang Yu F REHE 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FiRpIE L 2/2
Mr. Lam Man Kit (resigned on 1 September 2020) M EREE (R ZEZFF/F—HEE) 1/1
Dr. Lo Wai Shun HHEEEL 2/2
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie* ERBEE (F/E) 0/0
(appointed on 1 September 2020) (RZEZZTFNA—HEZ)

*

No Nomination Committee meeting was held after Mr. Fok Wai
Ming, Eddie was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 1 September 2020.

Two meetings were held in the year, in which members of
the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and discussion of appointment of
non-executive directors.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their
audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their
opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 87.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
on 21 August 2020, until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing
audit services in connection with the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020. During the year,
the fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$838,000. In addition,
HK$250,000 was charged for non-audit services, in relation to
interim report and capital transaction exercise.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. SO Chi Kai (“Mr. SO”), was appointed as the Group Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) on 3 April 2018 and is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting, financial management and company
secretarial matters.

The Company Secretary is mainly responsible for assisting the
Chairman of the Board and its committees to prepare agendas
for meetings and to prepare and disseminate meeting material
to the Directors and committees’ members in a timely and
comprehensive manner; ensuring every Director complies with
the Board’s policy and procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations; and ensuring accurate records of Board/committee
meeting proceedings, discussions and decisions are recorded.
According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. SO has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year. His biography is set out on page 30 of this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FRAMEWORK

The Group’s existing corporate governance framework and the
significant risks of the Group were summarized as follows:

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring the implementation of
an effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledged that the risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Main features of the risk management and internal control

systems

The

Group’s risk governance structure and the main

responsibilities are summarised below:

Board

To evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring the implementation of an effective
risk management and internal control systems;

To oversee the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis;

To perform an annual review to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

To oversee the management/responsible party (‘responsible
management”) in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control

systems.

Management

To design, implement and monitor the risk management and
internal control systems;

To perform risks identification assessment which might
threaten the strategic objectives set;

To review the risk and risk level and advise on any matters
which might be raised by employees and the Group;

To assist external consultant to analysis and appraise the
adequacy and efficiency of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems; and

To coordinate all the risks management and activities
process and in compliance with Listing Rules and report
periodically to the Board.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant
Risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group were summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

e |dentified the risks through discussion with the
management. Risk Assessment Questionnaire was used to
document the risk identified by the responsible parties.

Risk Assessment

° Identified the existing controls and analysing risks in terms
of consequence and likelihood in the context of those
controls. The risk analysis considered the range of potential
consequences and how likely those consequences were to
occur. Consequence and likelihood might be combined to
produce an estimated level of risk.

Risk Response

e  Categorised the risks into low risk, medium risk and high
risks;

e Determined the strategy to handle the risk; and

° Developed the risk register and internal control audit plan
and determined the frequency of review and control testing
on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e On-going communication of monitoring results to the Audit
Committee which enables it to assess control of the Group
and the effectiveness of risk management during the year,
including:

— Risk questionnaires completed by the management,
risk register and internal audit plan; and

—  Fact finding report with recommendations on the
review and testing of internal controls on certain
operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group’s
internal audit function is performed by the management of the
Company, including analysing and appraising the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the
Company to:

e Perform the risk assessment based on management
evaluation on identified area and report the findings and
recommendations to the management;

e Conduct various agreed upon reviews on the Group’s
existing internal control policies regarding notifiable
transactions and connected transactions and identify any
significant weakness in its controls; and

e  Conduct various agreed upon reviews on material controls
and perform testing of internal controls on certain operating
cycles and areas in accordance with the Company’s
Internal Control Audit Plan.

The Company has considered the recommendations on the
internal audit findings identified by the external consultant
and will be completed the implementation of the aforesaid
recommendations in the upcoming financial year.

During the year, the Board conducted an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company were adequate and
effective during the year.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is fully
aware of its obligations under the new Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 and the Listing Rules. The
Board has adopted a policy which contains the guideline to the
Directors and officers of the Company to ensure that the inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated to public in an
equal and timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts
or other forms of advantages from any person or organisation
doing business with the Group can be accepted by any
employee. Business partners and customers are reminded from
time to time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the
Group from accepting any gift from them.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group’s performance as well as
accountability of the board of directors. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

Information disclosure on company website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. The Company maintains company websites
at www.chinafortune.com and www.fortunetele.com where
important information about the Group’s activities and
corporate matters such as annual reports and interim reports
to shareholders, announcements, business development
and operations, corporate governance practices and other
information is available for review by shareholders and other
stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.
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General meetings with shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2020 annual general meeting (2020 AGM”) was held on
21 August 2020. The attendance record of the Directors at the
2020 AGM is set out below:

BREXE

KANBZRBBERTRHE—EERNES &
EEURFIERERE - RNRERTLEMS
BAREBUZEBIEE/ILRAER.

TEIEFRRBEFAR(ZTEZZFRAE
FRF))ERZZEIEFNAZ+—HET-
EFHR_S_TFRRBEAGZLHE
T

Attendance/
Number of
general meetings
HE
Directors = BRERAGRH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) NELRE (F/E) 1/1
Mr. Wang Yu F &&&E 1/1
Mr. Gao Fei (resigned on 1 September 2020) B W& W ZZE_ZFEFENHF—HEFT) 1/1
Mr. Hou Zhenyang* (appointed as a Non-executive — EEEEE (KF _—F ?Eﬁﬁ-ﬂ% 0/0
Director on 1 September 2020 and re-designated on Z1FEIEHITEE » W —FE - —4F
19 April 2021) 745+ H&81E)
Non-executive Director ERITES
Mr. Bao Kang Rong (resigned on 1 September 2020) 8RR &EYE (R —F _—FF A H—HEHE) 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors B IEHITES
Dr. Law Chun Kwan HREE L 1/1
Mr. Lam Man Kit (resigned on 1 September 2020) M Sk (R EZFFAH —HEFE) 1/1
Dr. Lo Wai Shun ST 1/1
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie* ERRELE 0/0
(appointed on 1 September 2020) (R ZEZZFNH—HEZ(E)

No general meeting was held after Mr. Hou Zhenyang and Mr. Fok
Wai Ming, Eddie were appointed as an Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Director, respectively, on 1 September
2020.

The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2020 AGM.
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its
activities to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to
their questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the CG
Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the
issued share capital of the Company and the securities being
held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
head office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”).
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including

a resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company

(*AGM”). The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i)

(ii

(ii)

Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding
() not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (i) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting. In order for the Company to inform
all Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must
state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited
Room 1505-06, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
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Email: info@chinafortune.com
Tel No.: +852 2422 0811
Fax No.: +852 2428 0988

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the

shareholders’ questions.

EH :info@chinafortune.com
EEESERE 1 +852 2422 0811
BEESERE | +852 2428 0988
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China Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present the Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

This ESG report is prepared with reference to the Appendix
27 - Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The information disclosed in this report is derived from the
result of internal statistics and analysis of the Group’s internal
management systems.

The Group is committed to fulfilling its environmental and social
obligations while striving for economic growth and creating value
for the Company’s shareholders. We focus on strategic priorities
in terms of maintaining a peaceful natural environment, creating
a harmonized working environment and sustaining an ethical
business environment. Through this ESG report, we hope to
continually refine our corporate strategy for sustainable business
growth, and deliver long-term value for our stakeholders.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are distribution and trading of mobile
phones and related accessories, development of marketing
and after-sales service network (“Mobile Phone Business”)
and mining and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals
(“Mining Business”). Since there were minimal activities in the
mining business, this report only covers China Fortune Holdings
Limited, Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd and A
TRBEERKBREAFE.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

The Board is responsible for and delegating the Group’s
management to timely discuss environmental, social and
governance issues and review the governance codes to enable
the Group to keep abreast of and comply with the latest
regulatory requirements in prior to the approval of this report.
This system monitors the management to design, implement
and continuously monitor risk management and internal control
systems and to assure the suitability and effectiveness of the
relevant systems and to assure timely implementation of the
Group’s sustainable development measures, the accuracy and
reliability of the data presented.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group continues to maintain the relationships and
communicate with its key stakeholders. We have identified our
employees, customers, suppliers, investors, shareholders and
communities at large as our key stakeholder groups. In daily
business, we communicate with different key stakeholders
through various channels such as conferences, electronic
platforms and public events so as to understand the concerns of
various stakeholders. To formulate the operational strategies and
ESG measures, the Group takes into account the expectations
of stakeholders and strives to improve its performance through
mutual cooperation with the stakeholders, resulting in creating
greater value for the community.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

We value your feedback on this report. If you have any feedback
or suggestions, please contact us at info@chinafortune.com.
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A. THE ENVIRONMENTAL

Our strategy towards the environment is to minimize the
impact on the environment with sustainable operations.
We place strong emphasis on environmental protection
by maximizing the efficiency of resources and reducing
pollution. Our sustainable practices encourage employees
to be more considerate of the environment by savings on
energy consumption and use of materials so that impact on
the environment and natural resources can be minimized.

A1. Emissions

Given the nature of our businesses, we do not
contribute directly to greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emission, discharges into water and land nor the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
However, we recognized that consumption of
electricity, paper and petrol at workplaces and by
motor vehicles account for our major indirect GHG
emissions.
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GHG Emissions

During the year, the Group’s total greenhouse gas
emissions reduced approximately 10.46 tonnes from
32.57 tonnes in 2019 to 22.11 tonnes in 2020. The
detailed summary of GHG emission for the year is
shown as below:

= RASHEK

ER-AEBZAERBIENEEH
TE—ALEMI2.57HER L HI10.460F
E_E_FEMN222AE - FRERE

V—

Kl H=

Pz s A2 S R

Intensity - Tonnes per
square feet of

Scope of GHG CO2 Emission (Tonnes) gross floor area
BERBEHE Za bRk (1) FE-W/SFAREEERE
2020 2019 2020 2019

Scope 1 Petrol consumption

BE1— S HHE 0.14 2.49 0.00003 0.00060

Scope 2 Electricity consumption

BE2-EJIHE 20.87 29.15 0.00449 0.00536

Scope 3 Paper consumption

HE—ARIHFHE 1.10 0.93 0.00024 0.00017

Total GHG emissions

BERBHRES 22.11 32.57 0.00476 0.00613

Notes: PEE -

1. Petrol consumption: according to purchase volume of 1. FRHHFE  REBEALBSREEEZ
gasoline and diesel of company vehicle; AHREHESE

2. Electricity consumption: according to electricity bills 2. BHOBEE BREALTDWIIZEE
received by the Company; BEHE;

3. Paper Consumption: according to purchase volume of 3. MERHFE I BEBEMAREESHE-

paper.
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To reduce the energy consumption and the amount
of carbon emission, we have implemented a number
of measures to mitigate such consumption and
emission, we reinforced our management of energy
conservation in our offices through the ventilation
system with a stabilized room temperature at 25
degrees Celsius, as well as reminding employees
to turn off any computers, printers, light and other
office equipment that are not being used. We try
to use daylight wherever possible, and choose
energy efficient equipment during procurement. We
encourage our employees to travel by public transport
to reduce carbon footprint. We advocate a green
lifestyle by growing plants in the office. Awareness of
environmental protection among our staff was raised
through the promotion of green office culture.

Relevant important laws and regulations including
the “Energy Conservation Law” and “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China” are
strictly complied with.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generates no hazardous waste in our
operation. Non-hazardous wastes from the Group’s
operation is mainly the paper waste. During the year,
the consumption volume generated by the Group is
shown as below:
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Intensity - Tonnes per
square feet of

Category of Non-hazardous waste Quantity (Tonnes) gross floor area

BEBEEYER #E (M) BE-W/STHFREEAER
2020 2019 2020 2019

Paper Waste

MoRBEEY 0.23 0.19 0.00005 0.00004

FEEERHRNBEEREMRLT
FR IR o 2R D ARSROEAE > RIS B R
EREEmTHREH-

The Group has implemented paperless processing in
its internal communications. In order to reduce paper
consumption, we encourage employees to use duplex
printing and copying.
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A2. Use of Resources A2, ERER
Energy saving tips and guidelines are in place as a KRB AN RIE R ARIES] UK
direction on the efficient use of resources throughout HEESETREERERER - M
daily operations. Our strategy is to reduce resources B9 26 B 75 355 38 B 8 3t 185 A3 BE R e 7Kk ~
used in daily office operation, through wise use of BEYM A RBEE UREBRERE
energy and water, wastage and paper consumption, S -EBYMER -RLOERANREREH
as well as promoting the practice of recycle, reuse, ZEMBLBBMAEEEMER
reduce, and replace. We recognize the importance IR - MR B S IRy E & LL
of transitioning our operations to bring upon more BRELOEEREENEE S

sustainable options.

Use of Resources

HiRER

Fuel Efficiency

AR 28

Materials

ikt

Water
K

We are committed to replacing old vehicles with more fuel-efficient vehicles.

RNBNBEEERA B AN M

We encourage employees to use telephone conference whenever possible to reduce
the carbon footprint of business travel.
B EEENRITER NMEREZ G LURD Z iRBVBE B o

We encourage to use automatic pencil leads and ball pen refills.
KMBEEREEMBECRERRHTESET

We encourage employees to bring their own water bottles instead of using paper
cups.
KBRS 8 H AR MUECAF -

We promote wise use of toilet paper.
RIPHEEAEEEARR-

We advocate the use of double sided printed to reduce paper wastage.
BAEEEEITEHNLUR L RBHR

We make sure there is no leakage of taps to conserve water.
FF R KEE B FIR K URIAI K o

57



58

China Fortune Holdings Limited
FEREERERAT

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - EREGHRS

Use of Resources

HRER

Energy
BER

Resources
&R

We maintain the room temperature at 25 degree Celsius to converse energy.
BRI R R E AR K25E U A BEIR

We keep the air ventilation system off if the room is vacant.
BN EEEASREEBRRR

We encourage employees to save energy by turning off lights and electronics when
not in use.

BB EEEAREIR Wi A EARREE R EIR

We remind employees to turn off lights, computers, printers and other office
equipment after work.
KMREREREN THERIRE B TR EMBAERE

We keep track on the power consumption record and take measures when there is
significant increase in consumption.

RMBERE S HFE B R IR E AHFEIG I RS EREFE 7 o

We encourage employees to reuse plastic bags, recycle glass bottles and aluminum
cans.

FMEBREREERER WIRBR IR -

Recycling of printer cartridges and toners is implemented.

BRPIEBREWITENRER RIS
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BEIRHFE

Energy consumption

FRNAERZVAKRBEIHER

During the year, the Group’s consumption in petrol and
electricity were:

Intensity - Unit per
square feet of

Energy Type Quantity Unit gross floor area
BE-M/

AE R R ¥E B STARIEEER
2020 2019 2020 2019

Petrol 45.42 1,054.13 litre 0.01 0.26

It AT

Electricity 30,319.30 46,270.37 kWh 6.52 8.51

B TR

Th Group has encouraged the employees to use
electricity wisely during the reporting period and led to
a drop of approximately 15,951.07 kWh compared to
that in 2019. Regarding the petrol consumption, the
Group has reduced 1,008.71 litre, from 1,054.13 litre
in 2019 to 45.42 litre in 2020.

Water consumption and use of packaging materials

The Group’s water consumption is minimal and no
issue in sourcing water for the Group’s operation had
been noted in the reporting period.

Besides, due to the nature of business, the Group did
not involve any use of packaging material and hence
the disclosure is not applicable to the Group.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Since our core operations are confined to the office
environment, we do not make significant impact on
the environment and natural resources. Still, adhering
to our policy, we will review in due course to seek for
continual improvement, if any.

AEBRRBREHRNEERERERE
BE ALBAHEER-ZZ—NLEF
TFE4915,951.07 T B o 2t 35 80
Ems A&EEEH_ZT—NEW
1,054 13AFE /1,008 71 AFEC
T BEM45.42 Q0 F o

EKERBEMEER

KEBRZEKEBRE BRHREHARN
TEAIARIMAER 2 EERBK
E/‘Jﬁtﬁ%o

SN EREBEE  AEELEY
RERETAAEME HIL - BRER
BIABERARAEE-

A3 IRIEREXAEE

HREMNZOEERRRBAE
RIEA RALERRIERRABR
BERERFE 28 RFEHFIBEK
FoHMABNBEREETRS XU
EFRERE (WA) °
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B. SOCIAL B. ¢t&

B1. Employment B1. 1EfE

We believe that our employees are valuable assets
to the Group. In order to build a harmonized working
environment, we recognize the importance of fostering
a supportive workplace for employees to grow with the
Group together.

We firmly believe in the principle of equal opportunity
for all employees and this is addressed in the staff
handbook as our employment policy. We ensure that
our recruitment, promotion, compensation, training
and dismissal practices are on a fair and equal basis.
We do not tolerate any discrimination based on race,
religion, sex, marital status, age, national origin, or
other considerations deemed inappropriate by local
laws. We strictly comply with relevant local laws and
regulations relating to hiring, compensation, dismissal,
working hours, rest periods and diversity.

We respect and protect the legal rights of employees
by abiding to the local laws and regulations including
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, as well as “Employment Ordinance” in Hong

provide a safe working environment. We have set up
procedures for our employees to follow in case of
typhoons and severe rainstorms to ensure their safety
during the journey from and to work. Access to and
egress from workplace is maintained unblocked. First
aid box with emergency contact is in place. We did not
find any work fatality cases or lost days due to work
injury during the reporting period.

RPEERMANEEATERZE
fﬁ% AEEME TERIE > KM

REEE—ELTREREXFHIIF
fﬁﬁ*ﬁ%’?%% LR EEHEAER—
R e

BPARERMEREEBRHTEHKE
WRAD TERSHEHABTFMES
HPINREBHER - HFRREE &
Frw i~ IBAl R R RIE DI D3R A
RFEREET RABFIBETREE
B~ SR R SRR~ F e~
RAEMZEZERAS T EENEMEA
ENERKRITR KAEERETAE
RIEES A AR TR SRR S
7o{E 77 ERVARRA & A 2 K AR

KMEBEABETEMEERKRA > 8
BEIREAREMES S A KM
EARENMBESEEREI UREE
Me@EG MEERRERENE
EREF] o

Kong.

B2. Health and Safety B2. BFHEZE
Safety always comes first throughout the operation Zr—EREERRETNEEES
and is the basis of success. Our health and safety WARINZ K RN EERZE A
approach is to minimize occupational hazards and HaBBEEBEERERME WRME

22 TFRE - HASHEERE KR
ERTHERF BESRMES*
RMFIZ 2 ER TIFHME > AR
B MBI ZEZE - RMARE=
HMERERMAEBE - RANKREH
W AR A TR TR EH -
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The COVID-19 pandemic crisis has been putting
pressure on the Group and its employees during the
year. As part of the COVID-19 countermeasures and
to prevent the spread of the virus, the Group has
implemented stringent infection preventive measures to
protect its employees. The Group’s closely monitored
the health of its employees every day by checking their
body temperature, providing sufficient surgical masks
and alcohol-based hand rub in the offices. The Group
also required its employees to consider using other
methods such as online video meeting software for
interviews or meetings. Employees are advised to wear
masks and avoid physical contact (such as shaking
hands, hugging) and crowded places when they are
required to meet people or work outside in their local
community.

Apart from physical health, we also take care of the
mental health of our employees as well. Paid annual
leaves higher than the statutory requirement are offered
to enhance the work-life balance. In addition, we have
lunch gathering during special festivals such as the
winter solstice and the Christmas Eve. We arrange
birthday parties for our employees to maintain their
spirit in a pleasant working environment.

In order to comply with the “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances”, all employees are covered by insurance
against any accidents.

IRIE B RERKRS

FEPRNCOVID-19 KR 1T G 1% H
FEBRERBEERBE N -ER
COVID-19FEH BN — 5 > 2Bh
IEREEE AEBCETEEN
BREERGRERE AEBESHEY]
EREENRERI ERAEALRE
Bl RETENIIEOE K
BRERFR - ANEETEREEEE
EEARLAGIRRGEEMA
FETEHANETEZR - BRERETE
THEAMTEEMASTERIIE T
R BEEH OSSR EE
(BIWIEF B > LiEgE AZE
BRI ©

FrEERERIN RFATHIREERN O
BERERE ZAREBZEREESZ
B R WIRA TIFEE T Lt
S AR L EREFREBAT Y FH 5
MARTTFERE - HAREELH
£ RIS > LR AR TR IR MR

TR

mET MEEHERG kT THRE
1w HMPERFARERBRE
ERIEIMIRER
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B3. Development and Training

B4.

The Group encourages continuous learning within
our employees and puts emphasis on their holistic
development. All new joiners are required to undergo
an induction briefing regarding corporate culture,
company’s policy and procedure, health and safety,
basic knowledge about the Group’s operation and
system. Measures on professional training, enhancing
leadership and talent team building are available
for employees to achieve their personal goals while
growing with the Group.

A performance appraisal is in place to review the
employees’ performance annually. This provides an
opportunity between the company and the employees
to communicate so that we can meet employees’
expectations and objectives.

Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the
workplace. Stringent hiring procedures and processes
are enforced to verify the legal proof of age before
commencement of work. We also regularly review the
employees’ information to ensure no employment of
child labour and forced labour. The Group has strictly
complied with the Labour Contract Law of PRC, the
Hong Kong employment laws and other relevant laws
and regulations to avoid child or forced labour and
other potential irregularities. We do not adopt any kind
of forced labour including prison labour as supplier.
During the reporting period, we did not find any issues
with child and forced labour.

B3. ZERIE

B4.

FEETEBEESFERE  LEEM
PNEBREER -FREMARENLAE
REREEXE - RTFERKRER
BEEZE2 AHEAEEEEKRRE
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B R REN U EAERHEF
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ZHE ML RMAIENEERE
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HTHEA
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F-HMTEMEEREER > LU
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Bb5. Supply Chain Management

One of our procurement principles towards
sustainability is to ensure that our procurement system
can manage any environmental and social risks in
the supply chain. In order to maintain sustainability
as well as quality, our strategy is to build a long-term
relationship with suppliers. We continue to monitor the
existing suppliers’ performances, according to a series
of quantitative indicators, which include fundamental
capability, cost competitiveness, delivery fulfilment,
quality control, customer service, business innovation,
and safety and environmental protection, to ensure
their quality and performance is up to our standard. We
encourage our colleagues to cooperate with suppliers
who have considered environmental and social impacts
in their products or services, so as to control our risks
and maintain the quality and the healthy development
of our supply chain. New suppliers have to undergo
assessment and evaluation before being adopted.

Green procurement has been our procurement
approach. In the process of sourcing materials, we
require that components used by the suppliers be
in full compliance with environmental protection
requirements, in accordance with national and industry
standards.

B6. Product/service Responsibility

Product and service

Quality is the key component to take shape of
customer satisfaction. With regard to product
quality, we ensure that all products should comply
with national standards including China Compulsory
Certification (CCC) in terms of testing certificates
issued by accredited laboratory. In addition to following
national standards regarding product quality, we abide
by the internal principles to secure the safety and
quality of our products. We strictly monitor the entire
lifecycle of our products, from sourcing materials to
product recall, return and replacement, so as to ensure
the execution of technical standards, operational
safety, as well as product and service quality.

IRIE B RERKRS

B5. (RE#ELE
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We value customers’ feedback, as this is the driving
force for our continual improvement. Once a complaint
is received, we will take prompt actions to investigate
the issue and carry out remedial action plans.

During the reporting period, there was no product
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons and no
products and service-related complaints received.

Customer privacy

Customer information is treated as confidential data in
the Group. Only core staff of relevant department are
granted permissions to access according to different
hierarchy and locations. The Group has the right to
executive disciplinary actions on employees who
violate the rules stipulated in the employee handbook.

Intellectual property

The Group endeavours to protect intellectual rights
by different measures. We actively monitor any
infringement in terms of counterfeit goods across
the country with people’s court and public bodies.
In addition, we renew the registration of any expiring
trademarks and patents based on the need of our
business. We strictly abide by relevant laws and
regulations, including the “Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China”.

Advertising and labelling

Systematic review and approval process is in
place before advertisement launch to the market
to safeguard accurate presentation and protect
customers. Appropriate safety warnings are attached
on the product packaging for consumers’ information.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - EREGHRS
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We are in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations including “Advertising Law of People’s
Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests”. There are no breaches of laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters in connection with our
products and services provided during the reporting
period.

B7. Anti-corruption

BS8.

Anti-corruption is the cornerstone of the business
and sustainability, which at the same time the most
material topics rated by our stakeholders. Stringent
policies are stipulated in the employee handbook
in relation to compliance with the “Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance”, such as soliciting or accepting
any advantages in the business operations, to ensure
employees’ actions abide by our internal regulations.
Procedures are established to minimize corruption
risks related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in the business operation. Internal control
mechanism is in place for monitoring. To achieve
and maintain the highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability, the Group establishes the
whistleblowing policy which allows our employees to
report whistleblowing matters anonymously. We did
not have any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices during the reporting period.

Community Investment

As a corporate citizen, we are responsible for driving
a positive impact to the community. We create job
opportunities and promote economic growth in
the local communities through our business and
operation. We encourage employees to participate
actively in voluntary services during their leisure time
to help people in need. We are under the process of
formulating a policy on community engagement.
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The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 88 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Yu

Mr. Gao Fei
(resigned on 1 September 2020)

Mr. Hou Zhenyang (appointed as a Non-executive Director on
1 September 2020 and re-designated on 19 April 2021)

Non-executive director:

Mr. Bao Kang Rong (resigned on 1 September 2020)

Independent Non-executive directors:

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit (resigned on 1 September 2020)

Dr. Lo Wai Shun

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie (appointed on 1 September 2020)

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) and bye-law 87 of the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Hou Zhenyang and Mr. Fok Wai Ming,
Eddie shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, respectively.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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The term of office of each of the non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors, the chief executive and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

Exus 513

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
FNELRE (TRI%EED) SREFEFE ()

Beneficial owner

Bm#EREA

Held by a discretionary trust (Note)
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EREEREE0.1087T2 ZBR
Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

shares held the Company
FRse %17 (WEARBET
HEk%E AT
188,300,013 20.52%
259,996,285 28.33%
448,296,298 48.85%




Note:

These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31 December
2020.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2020, there were no share options
outstanding.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed as at 31 December 2020.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2020, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

EEAN

R-B-BE+-A=+—B BmET I
FRZAMAATZHRNENEASDS XE
2 EBRATHZ &M

FERR

BIBAREIREE S KA G R 5533615 FT 7
BEzIBRREMIIT RZIBEZF+A
=t+—H'xRFEEFNIRREFTLRABDEH
TRARERRRER -

ELREFEZREE. 108772 BiBER
Percentage of
Number of the issued share

Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
FrEE 8T EXAREHT
TERRES 514 BiEREE AZBEZL
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 20.52%
- Pe 2REFFA (fst1)
Beneficial owner 259,996,285 28.33%
BHEAA
448,296,298 48.85%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 20.52%
FREL RENERBER (E2)
Notes: MIEE

1.  These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by
a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust
include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests
in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Future
2000 Limited.

1. ZERNPHERBREZEEFMAILZATE
Future 2000 Limited¥B > M&ZATH—E2
BEARE - Z2RERZZRABERL
CHEBRHETFL-

2. REBFSKBERA BAR=EFELEFER
Future 2000 LimitedZ lREAE L1TH=22
— MU ERTH MEEEAREKABRNDES
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 91% and 31%, respectively, of the Group’s
total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 98% and 44%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 31 to 51 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Group has a share option scheme under which the
Company may grant share options to the participants, including
directors and employees, to subscribe for shares of the
Company, details of the scheme is set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group, which are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

TEER
PRAFHREIIESTIEZEEERRESFIIR
BEN ARBARFA—EERNERRKRE
RAEMz EHRRMEG Oz EzER
ERTRREEERT

FRFEETARRLHMANTRNLE
EAREBER-

HEFE S

AEBZRBEMESBERBAHFNZESHE U
REZEBM BEERTBHA/EE-

ARBEFZHERFHFWNEETEEREELAL
RZEEEBE BARRERIELRT ISR
MERE °

AEEKRA -RBRESE BIEAAT AR
EEKEEFSHERHBRE  USBBEL
BIiR 1 st BIEF IR RN R B M B R R FIEEST o

FERRKEAFHBARE

EEENTHERAERANSEERERE
BRMAMMEZEE ZFRASEEERE
ERFEBERZAR UHHERKERLL
BREHGERE-



Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, downturn pressure on the overall economy of
the PRC and price competition from other market players. The
Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
and review of material business decisions involving material risks
exposures from time to time.

Financial Risk

The Board monitors closely the Group’s currency risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Board also reviews
monthly management accounts, capital structure and key
operating data of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Board monitor and ensure that the Group is in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group
engages professionals from time to time to keep abreast of the
latest developments in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational developments.
The Group also adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any
unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems covering business,
financial and compliance risks of the Group and is satisfied
that such systems are effective and adequate for the current
operations of the Group.

Annual Report 2020
SEBER

Diregtors’ Report
EEEgRES

EEmbE
FERBZEBRBROEERTSRIZ=2E
B -FREBEREEZ TTERAOREMTES
HEZERRF EFTEEXEHEREER
AR I RERABZERERERRK -

MEREE
EFgRUERTEERECEEAR FXE
B EERBRKABESZRAR -EFETER
FEECSREEKRE - BEXRBERTIEEE
iz o

& fm
EEgERIBRRAEEETER AR RA
RER - FEBFIRBEREXAESUEEEE
BREZEMER QEER - MUB BRERE
BERE -ANEETHRIEBRER RIEEMR
EERRERANEMEEENIARREE

EXCEERAEERNSEEREREER
MzBENE BREAEBZEDG UHREGR
Rk WEMZEREA A ER ZRRZEEM
EBAMKRTERE-

73



4

China Fortune Holdings Limited
FEREERERAT

Directors’ Report

EEGHRSE

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The
Group pursues this business approach by managing its business
prudently and executing management decisions with due care
and attention. The Group keeps on reviewing environmental
issues in its operations from time to time.

For details, please refer to section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 52 to 65 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group and discussed the Group’s
risk management, internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the management. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. Save in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
has not entered into any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Capital Reorganisation

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”), which involved:
(i) the share consolidation whereby every ten (10) authorised
and issued existing shares of HK$0.10 be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of HK$1.00; (ii) the capital reduction
whereby the issued share capital of the Company be reduced
by (a) rounding down the number of consolidated shares in
the issued share capital of the Company to the nearest whole
number by cancelling any fraction of a consolidated share in
the issued share capital of the Company arising from the share
consolidation; and (b) cancelling the paid up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the then issued
consolidated shares such that the par value of each issued
consolidated share be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01; and
(i) the share subdivision whereby every authorised but unissued
existing share of HK$0.10 be sub-divided into ten (10) adjusted
shares of HK$0.01 (the “Adjusted Shares”).

Further details regarding the Capital Reorganisation was set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 10 November
2020, 25 November 2020, 7 December 2020 and 7 January
2021 and the circular dated 15 December 2020.

Rights Issue

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$48.6 million, before the Set-off Arrangement
and relevant expenses, by way of the rights issue (the “Rights
Issue”), by issuing 91,777,944 rights shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.53 per rights share on the basis of one (1) rights
share for every one (1) adjusted shares held on the Record Date.

The Rights Issue was completed on 10 February 2021. The
net proceeds of the Rights Issue were approximately HK$15.6
million.
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Further details regarding the Rights Issue was set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 November 2020, 25
November 2020, 7 December 2020 and 7 January 2021, the
circular dated 15 December 2020 and the prospectus dated 19
January 2021.

The Group does not have other significant subsequent events
after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all the
staff for their outstanding contribution towards the Group’s
development. The Board wishes to sincerely thank the
management for their dedication and diligence, and they are
the key factors for the Group to continue its success in future.
Also, the Group wishes to extend its gratitude for the continued
support from its shareholders, customers, and business
partners. The Group will continue to deliver sustainable business
development, so as to meet its business objectives for 2021 and
realise higher values for its shareholders and other stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{HE : +852 28152239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEREZERERAT

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 218, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies (“2020 consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As detailed in Note 24(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, included in the Group’s trade and other receivables
as at 31 December 2019 were advances of HK$3,366,000
(the “Advance”) to Mr. Dai’s mother (“Mrs. Dai”). Mr. Dai was a
non-controlling shareholder of one of the Group’s subsidiary in
2019. The Advance was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand and as at 31 December 2019, no loss
allowance has been recognised in respect of the Advance.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Advance
was partially settled by Mrs. Dai. The remaining outstanding
amount of HK$2,700,000, being included in the trade and
other receivables, has been disposed of through the disposal
of subsidiaries in 2020. On the date immediately before
the disposal of subsidiaries, the directors of the Company
considered the credit risk of the Advance has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and the loss allowance for
the Advance was measured at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. In the opinion of the directors, the
12-month expected credit losses in respect of the Advance
was immaterial and therefore no loss allowance has been
recognised on the date immediately before the disposal. As
detailed in Note 33(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group recorded a gain on the disposal of subsidiaries of
HK$3,125,000.
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During our course of audit of 2020 consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company have not provided us
with adequate information about their assessment conclusion
that the credit risk of the Advance on the date immediately
before the disposal of subsidiaries has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. In addition, no reliable and supportable
information in respect of the estimation of the 12-month
expected credit losses of the Advance was provided to us by the
directors of the Company. We were therefore unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence we considered necessary
to assess the appropriateness of the directors’ expected credit
losses allowance assessment on the Advance. Given these
scope limitations, we were unable to determine whether the
directors’ estimation of expected credit loss allowance on
the Advance has followed the Group’s accounting policies as
detailed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
which are required by Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
9 “Financial Instruments”.

Recognition of expected credit loss allowance in respect of the
Advance on the date immediately before the disposal found
necessary would increase the impairment loss on financial
assets and increase the gain on disposal of subsidiaries
recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020, and would affect the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.

As described in Note 38(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, included in the Group’s amounts due from related
parties as at 31 December 2019 was amount of HK$8,960,000
due from a company which was controlled by Mr. Dai (the
“Debt”). The Debt was unsecured, non-interest bearing and as
at 31 December 2019, no loss allowance has been recognised
in respect of the Debt. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Debt was fully settled by Mrs. Dai in cash on behalf
of the related company controlled by Mr. Dai through a tripartite
settlement agreement.
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During our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statement
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“2019 consolidated
financial statements”), we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence we considered necessary to assess
the appropriateness of the directors’ expected credit losses
allowance assessment on the Advance and the Debt and
determine whether the Advance and the Debt were fairly stated
as at 31 December 2019. Accordingly, we modified our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The limitations on our scope of work relating to the Advance
and the Debt as at 31 December 2019 as stated in the above
paragraph remained unresolved during our current year audit.
Any adjustments to the expected credit loss allowance of
the Advance and the Debt as at 31 December 2019 found
necessary would have consequential impact on the amounts
of impairment loss on financial assets and the gain on disposal
of subsidiaries recognised in the profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020. As a result, we are unable to
satisfy ourselves as to whether the amounts of impairment loss
on financial assets and the gain on disposal of subsidiaries
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 were
appropriately determined.

Our audit opinion on the 2020 consolidated financial statements
is also modified because of the possible effect of the audit
scope limitations in our audit of the 2019 consolidated financial
statements on the comparability of the related 2020 figures
and 2019 figures included in the 2020 consolidated financial
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the “Basis for
Qualified Opinion” section above, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the amounts of impairment
loss on financial assets and the gain on disposal of subsidiaries
recognised in the profit or loss as detailed in Note 33(b) for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Accordingly, we are unable
to conclude whether or not the other information is materially
misstated with respect to these matters.
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FREEEERERAR

Independent Auditor’s Report

BIZHEMHRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ZEIFo%E %IEJ—
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the

in our professional

FEEZEE

FREZFEARBESNERAE  BA/N
%%%Wﬁ%WZﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%éx
ﬁ”%ﬁé%ﬁﬁ
KRERSREE EEO ErEHZE
RiRfERE %B@ﬁ %%Z%+rﬂﬁﬁ
MHFEEN BEFEE TXFENEESRE
FREREE m%iéﬁ$ﬁo

“Basis for Qualified Opinion” section, we have determined the

matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.

Key audit matters

HEEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZERNAREERSERE

Revenue recognition relating to sales of goods

EREmEE 2 iR

Please refer to notes 4 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements

BB G B R AN E4R%8

The Group’s revenue was derived from sales of

mobile phones.

BEEEZBEXREBBHERHEE

Our procedures on the revenue recognition relating to sales of
goods included:

EEMEHEREE 2 WmEsRE

(i)

TZREFEE:

inspecting sales and purchase agreements, on a sample
basis, to understand the terms of delivery and assess
whether management recognised the related revenue
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies,
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
HEREEERZ U TRIVERR AT EEEE

UirS 7 %%@Z%%ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁmzﬁmﬁ
RBERBWE ;
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?I%.LP%&EW#E*

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZERNAEREERER

Revenue recognition relating to sales of goods

EREmEE 2 iR

Management inspected the contract terms and
determined the amount of revenue recognised
during the year is dependent on the point in time
when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, generally when the goods are delivered
to and the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to customer.
BEEREAHNKIV TEETFEFRRIZWNE A

EERTIERBERETER2HEYE (—RAESR
NFEEURBRREBARAZABEEEREZTFE) M
Eo

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the
Group and errors in the recognition of revenue
could have a material impact on the Group’s
results.
EERRaEIBNSEREZFESARAE
H EEEZEEUUKRKGEERRZETH 5%
B *:BEREATE-

(i

(ii

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(iv)

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions
recorded during the financial year had been recognised
properly by inspecting the transactions selected with
relevant underlying documentations;
HEFTERVEEEARZHERSZE
RAMAERN G REMEC RS

R 7

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions
before and after the financial year end had been
recognised in the appropriate period by comparing
the transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentations; and

T EYRFEFERBRZHERZERERBERH
B ARAUERXHLEBRMEEZRS 5 &

reviewing if there is any significant adjustments to
revenue during the reporting period, understanding
the reasons for such adjustments and comparing the
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentations.
BRRSBAZWaECIFEEMERABE  THERM
A ZIER W MAER X LR AEEE -
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

EENREMBRRARKEZRRE

EFXRAEREERASHMAERHBZEE
MBREEIRBBATDRINZKERER
BOREEAAMIKRGEMBRE UEE
HARREZEFEEMBREALDEZ R
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RM B 2 B AR
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HERIELIIN BRI T 2B R T R -

EFTAEEER BEEZMBREER-
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RBAMBZGEMBRRAKEZ
B
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

E_L*;'-%(Eﬂﬁﬁi
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast signifi-
cant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

s MEESHRAUFBEEALERNGS
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate Number: P02410
31 March 2021
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FMEEEIAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Impairment loss on financial assets:

— Trade and other receivables, net

— Amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

— Amount due from an associate

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income that
may be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising
on translation from functional
currency to presentation
currency

Release of translation reserve
upon deemed disposal
subsidiaries

Release of translation reserve
upon disposal of subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic
Diluted

s
JS

i
g
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EEREEG

HINEEEIRE R
EVEEMEEZ
ERER
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¥
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FEEZEBABE
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RABEA N
FEIERI M
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LNk TP
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skE# (5H)

B

R E f&%l&

2020 2019
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’000
M5 FHET FET
8 80,949 108,455
(80,558) (107,444)

391 1,011

790 506
9 11,000 (12,229)
(334) (20)
(15,484) (17,266)
24 (8,771) (4,138)
25 (386) -
20 (224) -
10 (1,153) (605)
11 (9,171) (32,741)
12 4,547 (35)
(4,624) (32,776)
(780) (49)

94 -

(4) -
(5,314) (32,825)
219 (26,093)
(4,843) (6,683)
(4,624) (32,776)
1,729 (26,595)
(7,043) (6,230)
(5,314) (32,825)

(Restated)

(& EH)

16 0.23 cents 1l (26.98) cents 1l
N/AR & B N/AR7E A
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Non-current Assets
Plant and equipment
Mining right
Right-of-use assets
Investments in associates
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Club memberships

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties

FERBEE

g5 Kesr

RuEE

EREEE
REBMEARZRE
BRAFESABHEZ
MBEE
k=g

MEBEE
=8
PR B 5 BR AR ELA
FE W BR X
FEURRIE A+ 2 fRIE

Amounts due from non-controlling  F& U [ /B ‘A B FE 32 il 1%

shareholders of subsidiaries
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related parties
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Tax payables
Bank borrowing
Lease liabilities

Net Current Liabilities

Total Assets less Current
Liabilities

fe Rz ;IA
BATESABRRZ

MBEE
REKRFEFEY

TwEmaE

FE(T B 5 IR R & Ath
FE{SBREN

FE(IREBE AN T2 RIE

FEAS BT /BB A Bl IEREH 1
[ =

FE(TFRIE

RITEE

HEaE

nBaREFE

ﬁéﬁ@fﬁ J—JZ/nLgJﬁ{ﬂ

e MBIKRR

At 31 December 2020 R_ZE-Z&F+_"H=+—H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
= FET FET
17 26 82
18 - -
19 110 1,176
20 - -
21 3,964 4,691
22 886 874
4,986 6,823
23 - 26
24 3,292 16,503
38(a) - 24,849
25 28 3,638
21 907 921
26 30,122 18,177
34,349 64,114
27 22,024 30,688
38(b) 11,419 24,796
25 465 3,426
1,847 6,334
28 - 4,480
30 456 1,307
36,211 71,031
(1,862) (6,917)

3,124 (94)
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e MBIKRR

At 31 December 2020 R_ZE-Z&E+_"H=+—H

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Deficit

Non-current Liabilities
Lease liabilities
Government grant
Amounts due to related parties

B RH#AE
EZS
(i

EABHEE AEGED
FREER M

&5 At

FRBERE
HEARE

IS 468 B
FEIRIEA L ZRIE

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Siu Ying

FNERE
CHAIRMAN

ZE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FET
29 91,778 91,778
(75,015) (77,786)
16,763 13,992
(42,055) (82,617)
(25,292) (18,625)
30 - 707
32 - 5,600
38(b) 28,416 12,224
28,416 18,531
3,124 (94)

RRESFE

Mr. Wang Yu
FREE
DIRECTOR

E



At 1 January 2019
Loss for the year
Exchange differences arising on

translation from functional currency

to presentation currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year
Deemed step acquisition from

associate to subsidiary (Note 34)

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2020
Profits/{loss) for the year
Exchange differences arising on

translation from functional currency

to presentation currency

Release of translation reserve upon
deemed disposal from subsidiaries

to associate

Release of translation reserve upon

disposal of subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Imputed interest on the loan from
related parties (Note 38(b))
Capital reduction of a subsidiary

(Note 42(c))
Deemed disposal from

subsidiaries to associate (Note 33(a))
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33(0))

At 31 December 2020

Annual Report 2020

—T_SER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SEmEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

R=F-n%-A-A

FEBR

EPEERREERIER
MELZERER

St

FERERAEE

HELTANBLTNGRA
7HE (k)

RIB-NE+ZAZ1+-H

RIZZ%£-F-H

EERT/ (BB

BIEEREEE 2T &K
gLz ERZR

tHEADIRERT
REHERRITAERE

HEMBARBRINAERE

FEREYARE

REBEALZERZ
EHE (H5380)
~EMBARNEAHE
(¥5242(0))
RHBADIBEARZ
RIEHE (H:33()
HERBAT (H:33(0)

RZFFE+ZAZ+-H

Attributable to owners of the Company

n§T§

FRARE AR
Share Non-
Share Share Special ~ Translation  Statutory option Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
EE Ei3: ]
BE  RINEE  WHEE  BEEE  EEE i HitEE  EHER ] i BELR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TE#n TE#n Thm T Thn Thn Thn TR Thn Thn
(Note i) (Note i) (Note i (Note iv) (Note v) (Note vi)
(ak) (ki) (i) (Ffgtv) (Htzkv) (Ff3kwi)
91,778 417,391 2,481 67,025 30,182 - 1,814 (670,034) 40,587 (33,151) 7,436
- - - - - - - (26,093) 26,093) (6,683) (32,776)
- - - (502) - - - - (502) 453 (49)
- - - (502) - - - 26,093) 26,595) (6,230 (32,825)
- - - - - - - - - 6,764 6,764
91778 417,391 2,481 66,523 30,132 - 1,814 (596,127) 13,992 (32617) (18,625)
91,778 417,391 2,481 66,623 30,182 - 1,814 (696,127) 13,992 (32,617) (18,625)
- - - - - - - 219 219 (4.843) (4.624)
- - - 1,420 - - - - 1,420 (2,200) (780)
- - - 94 - - - - 94 - 94
- - - @ - - - - @ - “
- - - 1510 - - - 219 1,729 (7,043 (5,314)
- - - - - - 1,042 - 1,042 - 1,042
- - - - - - - - - 10,406) 10,406)
- - - - - - - - - 4,357 4,357
- - - - - - - - - 3,654 3,654
91,778 417,391 2,481 68,033 30,182 - 2,856 (595,908) 16,763 42,055) (26,292)
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nﬂ'CIEE;Léﬁgwiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share

capital in excess of nominal value.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on
retranslating the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into
presentation currency.

The statutory funds are required by the relevant laws applicable
to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior years’
losses of the PRC subsidiaries.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve represents the imputed interest portion calculated by
the effective interest method on the loan from a related party which
was provided interest-free.

MIEE

(0

(i)

(il)

(vi)
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Imputed interest on loan from
a related party
Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Loss on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of inventories
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and
other receivables
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of right-of-use assets
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of amount due from
an associate
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of amount due from
a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary
Impairment loss on goodwill
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables
Recovery of write down of inventories
Write back of trade payables
Write back of business tax payables
upon deregistration of a subsidiary
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Gain on dercognised right-of-use assets

Gain on deregistration of an associate

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries

Loss on written-off of plant and
equipment

n\7|- A Eﬁﬁ;ﬁgi

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Z L _ZF+_F=+—HILFE

KEEE
PRETIEMR AT 18

HE

HBEUA
HEAENHEMX
KE—REEALZ
BERMZEEFE
BAFESABRZ
MHBEEZAFERAE
HERATFEFAERZ
MBEEZEIR

iF EREsN Z R B E

FLIE U & 5 SRR HoAth
FEUS BR AR BE D 2 BB 1R

TR BS e 5k B FERD 2 R B RS 18
PR EEERSS ZRERE

FLFE U —FE B R B IR
FERERE

T FE U — 1 B B8 2 B) SR 4 1%
IR ER TR IBREEE Z R BT 1R

MEZBEBE

FLIE U & 5 SRR HoAth
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B R R E]

T SRR B (O]

&S B 5 IR ]

Bl =N -Sc{E
FENEER

PR B e s T EE

EREEENE

RIS EREEEN N

s —EBE AR
HEN B AR

RIFLENB AR YN m

B 5 52 5% s il 8 2 5 18

2020

HK$’000
FET

(9,171)
(299)
54
933

1,025

3,837

431

224

386

(66)

(891)
23
552
(468)

(3,125)

(6,269)

2019

HK$’000

THATT

576
108
69

95

4,256
5,166

831

6,005

(118)
(370)
(23)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

OPERATING CASH FLOWS BEFORE
MOVEMENTS IN WORKING CAPITAL

Decrease in inventories

Increase in amount due from
non-controlling interest

Decrease/(increase) in amount due from
a related party

(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables

Tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Net cash inflow for acquisition of
a subsidiary

Net cash outflow from deemed disposal
of subsidiaries

Purchase of plant and equipment

Payments to acquire plant and
equipment

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of principal portion of
the lease liabilities

Repayment of bank borrowing

Advance from a related party

Repayment to a related party

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
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2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(12,824) (14,479)
- 370

(28) -
18,564 (2,795)
(11,480) 22,584
8,953 (21,544)
- (80)

3,185 (15,944)
299 87

- 282
(222) -
() -

- (693)

70 (324)
(1,067) (551)
(4,480) -
39,492 11,401
(26,755) (2,757)
7,190 8,093
10,445 (8,175)
18,177 26,563
1,500 (211)
30,122 18,177
30,122 18,177




Annual Report 2020
SEBER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B R R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and trading
of mobile phones and related accessories, development
of marketing and after-sales service network and mining
and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

2,

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new/
amended Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of
Material

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and introduce an optional concentration test that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The election to apply the concentration test is made
for each transaction. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and
If the
the acquired set of
activities and assets is further assessed based on the

assets is determined not to be a business.
concentration test is failed,

elements of a business.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially

relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have

been issued, but are not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current

intention is to apply these changes on the date they

become effective.

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to

HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions!

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)°

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Insurance Contracts and the
Related Amendments®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 22

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. REEMBFHREEDN (TEEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) HIREAER) (&
(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) B8 [ K ERLBIFTET A 1EET
are not yet effective (Continued) EEMEHEER (5Z)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 1 R_ZE_ZFEB—HH %A
2020. NEEBRBER -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 N2 _—aF#—H—Hm 2%k
January 2021. B EFEEEARB L o

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 R_E-__—_F#F—A—HmZ2%EH
January 2022. NEERBER-

4 Effective for business combinations for which the date of 4 HWBHPEANR S __F—HF—
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual Hz&HENEaBEEEHBMREA
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. K2 BHEBSHER -

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 5 R_E_=F—A—Hm@z%KHH
January 2028. NEERBER-

6 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the 6 ZEEBITENEBEEMERNSEH
sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods S BREMNEEHBERZEED
beginning on or after a date to be determined. EELERKAC

Amendment to HKFRS 16 - COVID-19 Related Rent BB RBEERE16E 2 BT —
Concessions COVID-19tBRFAE & B =
The amendment introduces a new practical expedient BEESEEZEET]AXME AL
for lessees to elect not to assess whether a COVID- ETHHNEE LEEHTEERNT
19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The {LECOVID-19/HB M BEED
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions A—IBMEE BT T L EEH
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 AmEMUTERBEERNCOVID-198
that meets all of the following conditions: BEANHESESE

e the change in lease payments results in revised o THENHEFHENHEEMWLKLE
consideration for the lease that is substantially the TR EBESREEFHaNEENR
same as, or less than, the consideration for the BARMEBRIENZRE
lease immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only e TMHE(NZE E’] FRFEMEFER
payments originally due on or before 30 June TR _E-_—FA=+H%
2021; and Z ATV HRRY IR 5 K&

e there is no substantive change to other terms and e HEMHMKEIREGLESE

conditions of the lease. BHiEEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. R4S BETRIREER (TEHBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) HIREAER) (&

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) EAEM{E e K ERBIFET A IEET

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 - COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes
are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash,
equity instruments, other assets or services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

2,

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS 1
with no change in conclusion and does not change the
existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments and revision in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing
the impact that the application of the amendments will
have on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. R4S BETRIREER (TEHBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) HIREAER) (&

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) EAEM{E e K ERBIFET A IEET

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract).

The directors of the Company is currently assessing
the impact that the application of the amendments will
have on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts. The standard outlines a ‘General
Model’, which is modified for insurance contracts with
direct participation features, described as the ‘Variable
Fee Approach’. The General Model is simplified if
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for
remaining coverage using the Premium Allocation
Approach.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of this standard in the future will have
an impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMMEBHARBESER (TEEE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) FRIpEER)) (&

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) B8 [ K ERLBIFTET A 1EET

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result
of past events. For a levy that would be within the
scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments
also add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the future
will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMMEBHARBESER (TEEE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) FRIpEER)) (&

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) B8 [ K ERLBIFTET A 1EET

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is
a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
with an associate or joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, any gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains
or losses resulting from the remeasurement of retained
interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised
in the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transaction arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the “Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes
to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will
not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform,
if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria;
and (c) disclosures in which an entity will be required
to disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the future
will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

- HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to
HKFRSs.

- HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on
other’s behalf are included.

- HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

- HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using
a present value technique.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the future
will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, these
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except that certain financial
instruments are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss for
the year of HK$4,624,000 and as at 31 December
2020, the Group was in net current liabilities position
of approximately HK$1,862,000 and a net deficit of
HK$25,292,000.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully considered to the current and
anticipated future liquidity of the Group.

3.
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3. RREE (B

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
(Continued)

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and
liquidity in foreseeable future, the directors of the
Company have taken the following measures in the
preparation of the cash flow forecasts for the period up
to June 2022:

— raised addition capital with approximately
HK$15,583,000 net cash injection after the Set-
off Arrangement with balances approximately
of HK$31,445,000 due to Mr. LAU and related
expenses approximately of HK$1,614,000 by
the completion of a rights issue exercise on 10
February 2021; and

—  obtained the letter of support from Mr. LAU that
he would not request the Group to repay the
amounts due to him (including in the amounts
due to related parties) until the Group is in a good
financial position to repay.

Based on the Group’s cash flow forecasts and with the
above measures, the directors are of the opinion that
the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due for the foreseeable future. The Group
therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(b)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities
and assets meets the definition of a business and control
is transferred to the Group. In determining whether a
particular set of activities and assets is a business, the
Group assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and substantive
processes and whether the acquired set has the ability to
produce outputs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group,
as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity attributable to
owners of the Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position (see
Note 40), investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate
has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing a part interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
are recognised on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest it that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

— provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

— creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

— does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue for trading of mobile phones generally includes
only one performance obligation. The Group has concluded
that revenue from trading of mobile phones should be
recognised at the point in time when control of the products
is transferred to the customer, generally when the products
are delivered to and the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to customer.

Commission income is recognised point in time when the
goods are delivered to customers.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase price
and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates
used for the current year are as follows:

5%-20% or over the term
of the relevant leases,

Leasehold
improvements
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

An item of plant and equipment is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy
to account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. Except for right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies the
revaluation model, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-
of-use asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, they are carried at fair value and for right-of-
use asset that meets the definition of a leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, they are carried at fair value.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
(i) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

as at commencement date;

(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the

lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying

the Group

amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in
future lease payments arising from change in an index
or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the in
substance fixed lease payments or a change in assessment

to purchase the underlying asset.

Intangible asset
Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible asset (Continued)
Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining
right is amortised using the units of production method
based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during mine
development or during the production phase, based on
the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost is
capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether the
rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of the
operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase
in the net present value of the provision is included in
borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and
related assets, and the effect is then recognised in the
profit or loss on a prospective basis over the remaining life
of the operation. Provision for close down and restoration
costs do not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
require a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as port of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those

assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and
equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable and are recognised
as other revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of
the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
any uncertainty related to income tax.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and initial
recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part of the
business combination, which affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised, provided that the deductible temporary differences
are not arises from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction other than in a business combination that
affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and
reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income tax
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when

they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive

income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group has not elected to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income but in profit or loss
directly. All equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest
income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on
trade receivables and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of
the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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4.

BB IR R M T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90

days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or
days past due.

(2) the financial asset is more than 365

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

4. FEF
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THTE ()
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

(iv)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

4. FEGHEE &
THTE ()
(iv) BERF=RZE

(v)

(vi)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

4. TEGHHE (&

Financial instruments (Continueq)

THTE ()

(vi) Derecognition (Continued)

(VI) gﬁ.u:ﬁwu( )

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

HWEREREBYFEEZAN &
EERNEEAZTHEESREATA
U EsnsozHHaE e
?ﬁZ%$IE%EﬁﬁEi#H
Y BaERERYBRERE
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KTRZRFEFENESE AR
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DZEBERAENREBZEZERNE
miBm P

Related parties FZEAN L
A person or a close member of that person’s family is (a) WMWBUTFTAL BIsZALTSiEFHA
related to the Group if that person: NEEBRE

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

() HEAEBEFEHEHIHBZEH
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

4. FEGHHR @
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

4. TEGHEK (@)
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the a critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the results of the Group’s operations and
financing plan assessed using cash flows forecasts as
detailed in Note 3(b). However, because not all future
events or conditions can be predicted, this assumption is
not a guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The provision rate of trade receivables is made based on
assessment of their recoverability and ageing analysis
of trade receivables as well as other quantitative and
qualitative information and on management’s judgement
and assessment of the forward-looking information. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast of economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast of
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of debtors’ actual default in the future.
The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in Note 7(b).

5.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment of other receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowing and amounts due to related
parties as disclosed in Notes 28 and 38(b), and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will

6. BEXERER (&

AAREFTTERRANERRB 1T
EXETRETHAKREERR - REES
ZHEEZZ AEEREBRERE - #
THRORETHEBAEERBERS

maintain its overall capital structure through the payment of

dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debt or

the redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

year.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting

period was as follows:

Bank borrowings
Amounts due to related parties

Total Debt

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net cash

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Net debt to equity ratio

IRITERR
FEATRAZE N 2 /IR

HIET

E‘

W ReRIBEEEY

A

i NSIE DN

FEREHEmLER

MR HEREARRB

AEEZ EREREEERSF

AEERBREHRZEEGB/LIRNT

2020 2019
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET FET

= 4,480

28,416 12,224
28,416 16,704
(30,122) (18,177)
(1,706) (1,473)
16,763 13,992
N/A RiEH N/A 38 F
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China Fortune Holdings Limited

FEREZERARAR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets MBEEE

Loan and receivables at HEERASTECER
amortised cost (including K EURER R (B3E
cash and cash equivalents) BERIBEHBY)

Financial assets at fair value BAFEF ABGR
through profit or loss ZHBEE

Financial liabilities MBaR

at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market price; and

the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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7. I A

(a) EHITRLES

REHMRAFTEZMBAE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTRET THET
31,167 58,408
4,871 5,612
62,764 76,577

MHEEERYBARZAFERETE
LI

BT 2 AR e A% £ 3 S O B A
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. I A @
(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) (a) EMITRIER (B)

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial EBHBREEDFE13EREIR U

instruments that are measured at fair value by level of TATEAEBHRZERKERA

the following fair value measurement hierarchy: TEstEZ2EM T E .

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F14h . HEBESREENERBTE
markets for identical assets or liabilities; RS CREHE) ;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included Fo4R . FBUREBEAMNREULINDG
within Level 1 that are observable for the BENSETRRE ASE
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; (BEoEE &
and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not E3R . WIFERTEBEERGHEHE

based on observable market data. EEREERAZBE-
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FEREZERARAR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value

hierarchy:

Assets
At 31 December 2020

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Unlisted equity
investments
— Unlisted fund investment
- Listed equity investments

At 31 December 2019

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Unlisted equity
investments
— Unlisted fund investment
- Listed equity investments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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7. EMIA @

(a) LTI ALHEF (&)
TREREBEAFTEIRZzZEMT A
BANFERBHKE D Z DM
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B4R E24R B34k #azt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
BE
R-BZRE
+=ZB=+—H
BAFESAERZ
MBREE
—JELMRERE
- - 67 67
—ELHESKE - - 3,897 3,897
— FHRERE 907 - - 907
907 - 3,964 4,871
RZT-NEF
+=ZB=+—H
BAFESAERZ
MREE
—JELMRERE
_ - 222 222
—JELHEERE - - 4,469 4,469
— FHRERE 921 - - 921
921 = 4,691 5,612

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

or into or out of Level 3 during the year.

FR> BIRRFE2R BB EEZ

IR A B E3MR -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. TR T H =
(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) (a) ZFHTEHEIEF ()
The movement of financial instruments under Level 3 NEEEBRFZ EIRIB N T B
of fair value hierarchy is as follows: Ul :

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 4,691 5,350
Disposal HE - (69)
Fair value change N EES) (957) (510)
Exchange adjustments e R R 230 (80)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 3,964 4,691
The fair value of financial assets that are grouped DB EEMRIB R M BEEZANTE

under Level 3 is determined by using market approach BIYfEETE A EEENETE -

valuation techniques.

Specific valuation techniques used to estimate the fair AR EEIMREm T A EMEE

value of the Level 3 financial instruments include: WM dE

e The fair value of the unlisted equity investment o FEHARAKLEBEZATELE
was determined based on the fair value of AERZEBSEEREEZA
underlying assets and liabilities of the entities. FEEEE-

e The fair value of the unlisted fund investment e FIFTEESEKLEZAFELH
was determined by the fund manager with HegE2EREARAENE
reference to the expected return from the property (THhE ) 2 EREIBEE ZE
development project in the People’s Republic of HAGI3R M IE ©

China (“PRC”).
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost approximated
their fair values as at 31 December 2020 because of
the short-term maturities nature.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets included financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and cash
and cash equivalents. The Group’s major financial
liabilities included trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and amounts due to related parties and
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The group entities are exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily arising from bank deposits, other
receivables and trade and other payables that are
denominated in foreign currency.

7. EHEIE (ﬂé
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(b)
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. ®BTH (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMEEEREEHERKF (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) HmiZAKE &
(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SMEREE (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
monetary assets and liabilities which are

REBEHR AEELERER
BERINEGELUINZEKEE

denominated in currencies other than the ZEREBREEREBRZEKA
functional currency of the relevant group entities (=R
at the end of reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
af& BE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TFET FHT FHET
HK$ T 4,224 14,790 11 451
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation REBRTEH BT ZERXRE

of HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity analysis to a 4% (2019: 4%)
appreciation in the functional currency of the
relevant group entities (RMB) against the above
foreign currency. 4% (2019: 4%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting
period for a 4% (2019: 4%) change in the
exchange rates. A strengthening of the functional
currency of the relevant group entities against
the above foreign currency would give rise to the
following impact to the Group’s results for the
yeatr, Or vice versa.

AR TR EREREER
e B (AEW)/\L%&“%W
FHEA% (ZE2—NF 1 4%) 2

BREDT 4% (ZTE—NEF:
4%) 7R EIRE HIMNEE K] At
RRGEEH 2T -BRED

rESEERBEZIINESE
EREE TRREHARUER
4% (ZZ—NFE 1 4%) 2 EFH
BME-HEEEEBERNES
R EASNETE BB AER

zzfﬁﬁ?ﬁéb\FzéELA7<%5%5 ‘Rz
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n\7|-

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Decrease in loss for the year &38R/
- HK$ — BT

In the management’s opinion, the above sensitivity
analysis is not necessarily representative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at
year end does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its borrowings (see Notes 28
and 38(b) to the consolidated financial statements
for details) as they are carried at amortised cost.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk as the interest rate of bank borrowing is
floating (see Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements for detalils).

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to the interest rate risk on financial
assets is not significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

7. ST A (&

(b)

HERREERERKE (&
HmiIFER (&
(i) SrMEEEE (8)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(169) (574)
BEEEBRA BHRNFAFEHEZ
Hﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬁ?$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁ2
b > B E B RNE D AT I AR —
Eﬁ?\zl*ﬁ_ﬁl\ﬂ%ﬂﬁm
(i) FIFEREbE
HREE GEIBERGESBHRE

Pt 5E28%238(b)) LA#E 5 pl 4 5]
B BAEBBAMEEERE
ANFEFRER - AEEIFFIL
M%'J$¥T>EPBZ o PR BIEE
EEMXER TEEERE
H%%Féﬂ/qﬂ%jﬁu?ﬂﬁﬂw

HRIBTEEZN XS FEFH
X (FBERGEEMBRERW:E
28) ' MAEEEBRERERN
K@
f’ﬁ*ﬁ AR AERZHMBEE
E’]?F'JTJ—LB TARER AL
BEE2RBEREDM-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, and bank balances. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of the debtors. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significant different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

7. ST A (&

(b)

HMERBREEEEREE (&

FERKE

FEBZEERREEZEREHEBK
B 7 MR R HoAt FE U BR AR FE UL R 222
AT M E QB IFEIMERER ZMR
ERBTHEG BEEERXREEER
R UHEERLAERAZEEER

55 o
AR

P& UL B 5 AR 70 s H At FE W BR R
S FMBEEERBR—ETBEZEH
ABBEZEREEN G ARG
EPREBAIMNIBRIBZERE
RIBE A RZBES  UREBREHA
ZERENKREBAESEMRAEMZ
RERB - AERIMEBA Y
RRETHEEENE - AEERES
T EEH AWEIRIR R -

FEERFANENEREEBR
2B ERKEZRRZEEE
B HDLERERERETSE B
RAEEBEEEHRIL KRR
ERNDBBETRERTEBERN &
REBRREZGEEEEITNEAE
ErREFRERZBE-—SPED
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables:

2020

Not past due

Less than 1 month past due
1 to 3 months past due

4 to 6 months past due

7 to 12 months past due
Over 12 months past due

2019

Not past due

Less than 1 month past due
1 to 3 months past due

4 to 6 months past due

7 to 12 months past due
Over 12 months past due

FiBHA

EHED 1@ B
BEA1E=31E B

iBHEA4Z=6fE B

BEATE12(E B
iBHEABE12ME B

FRiBHA

BHAD 1@ B
BER1ZE3E B

iBHEA4Z=61E B

BHEA7TE 1218 B
iBERBAE121E B

EMIA (&

(b) HERBEEZEGREREE ()

FERK &

TERREHEARFAERRARZEER
BREBWEBEZRMZBAEEHE

Bt

Gross
ECLs rate carrying Loss
FEHA amount  allowance
kS HEREE ESi8 1A
(%) HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
0.150% - -
0.153% - -
0.190% - -
0.493% 509 (2)
43.95% - -
100.00% 3,446 (3,446)
3,955 (3,448)

Gross
carrying Loss
ECLs rate amount allowance

TEHA

Bria = HRRRTEIME BiaRE
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHETT FHETT
0.150% 5,029 (6)
0.153% 25 -
0.193% 81 -
0.516% - -
100.00% 3,193 (3,193)
100.00% 51 (561)
8,379 (3,250)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

7. ST A (&

(b)

HMERBREEEEREE (&

FERK &

BHREEERERNRERBRER
B -ZFRXREHBEURB I ER
FHEIBEZEH 2B BRIRR
R 7 5 B B WK IR TR 51 F B A
BERRZBEZER

A 4% 780 HA 3 R B = M8 U BR R B 4 B
WHEERELEZZEERER-

BABERABEZEKIERESET
BURFAR ZEFFRNAEHE
EERFREESR REEELE
EEEMEEBAMNZEERTIRA
ERE FEAGEERIESK
BE) > B ARG RIMEESR A THK
@o
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

Balance at 1 January W—B—BZ#&eR

Exchange adjustments R
Impairment losses recognised FRERZBERE
during the year

Reversal of impairment loss BEIFER 2 BB R
recognised
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—B2#&8

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020 included two
major counterparties accounting for approximately
99% (2019: included two major counterparties
accounting for approximately 98%) of the trade
receivables. The Group has closely monitored
the recoverability of the receivables from these
counterparties and taken effective measures to ensure
timely collection of outstanding balances. The Group
has not obtained collateral from customers.

EMTIA (&

HMERBREEEEREE (&

FERK &

FEREMEKE SRR FERER
BREBHMT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRET THET
3,250 52
202 (58)

2 3,256

(6) -

3,448 3,250

A ZECEE+ZRA=+—H F&E
EREWEBEZRMZEERBRERE
EmMREEKEZRMN9%ZE
EXGHFH (CE-—NF BE—
LEEWEZRRAABUZEER
ZHFH)  AEEEBYERMAZ
ERXGHFHIFHZEBWERZ A
W BB 5t » M FRER A X% 38 It BE R e
WeElH KRBl Z &% AEBE T ER
ERESIERS -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 99% (2019: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with four (2019: four) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because management believes the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit quality.

The Group is exposed to the concentration of
geographic risk on revenue which is generated mostly
from customers located in the PRC. The Group has
closely monitored the business performance of these
customers in the PRC.

The amounts due from related parties, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and other receivables are
measured at amortised cost. The credit risk of these
financial assets are considered have not increased
significantly since initial recognition. They are subject
to the ECLs model and the loss allowances limited
to 12 months ECLs. After applying the ECLs model,
additional loss allowance of HK$1,869,000 (2019:
HK$1,000,000) has been charged to the profit or loss
during the year.

7. ST A (&

(b)

HMERBREEEEREE (&

FERK &

o REBRNEERBEHRNER
BE® 99%WIRITERRE (T2 —N,
F199%) FRNRERIRIT (CE—A
FIOR) A MBEEEERR
BER RAEEBEEHFFAE
ERF -EEEE5MRITC

REBEAAERD 2 M REBRES
EREARIEREMUNFHZEZER -
FEEERYEEZSTTETRZ
EHRIF -

FEURRAZE A + 2 I8~ FEUR T B A )
FEES MR R 2 R IE R A R UR
FHERBERAHE  REVBEE
ZIEERBEAER BT REIBLUK
WRAKEBIGM - %EBE AT EIRE
EFEEEAERERI2ESBHREE
B EBEEEMBAR -NERHE
HEEHBERERZ FREIINEGE
51,869,000 T (Z2—LF :
1,000,000 7T) E B8k o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the PRC stock exchange.
Management monitors the price risks and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to the equity price risk on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is not significant.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management closely
monitors the borrowings as well as the cash flows from
operating activities on timely basis.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

7. ST A (&

(b)

HMERBREEEEREE (&
Rt (B AR EL AR

KEBRAKE LMRAFESIMAES
RERK BEBEFRAR T —NE
BHEUEERILRE AEENKE
BRFEEFRFEEZS XS PTHR
BNRATRE EEEERERA
B MR A RERERE AR

EEERXSEEEBRATES AR
mZMBEERZHREGRKRER
WARER FHIETEZKRBRKED
#fr

MENE & E R

EERPESARR AEREET
MEEEBRARHAETERESE
RHEBESZRERRESFEY LR
KRS RBRH 2B -EEEIR
REEEEEURKEE R 2R
EREo

TR AEBUTERIFTENF
BRZAGENVEIFF ZREE
MHEaRzAMBRETRERTE
HofEREE R ARG 81
FMERKAEZIRERE
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(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity table

2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
- non-interest bearing
- fixed rate at imputed interest
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Lease liabilities

2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
- non-interest bearing
- fixed rate at imputed interest
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Bank borrowing
Lease liabilities

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

MEFH
ERAE
%
k- - 33
FEMBaR
ERESRIRENEMRN -
ENEEATZHE
~F3E -
~RESHEHEZETHNE  465-4.75
EMHBAT
FEBIEREZFE -
HE&E 4.75
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
METLH
L iES
%
ZE-hE
FEMBaR
eI B BRI R HM B RD -
ENBEEALZHE
—TEE -
~REENSHEZETNE 475
EAHBAG
FEBIEREZFE -
RITEE 425-4.30
HE&R 4.75

(b) HEAREEEERBE (#)
I §J ﬁ ﬁﬂ |}~E Cfg)
HEEZER
More than More than Carrying
On demand 1yearbut 2 years but Total amounts
or less than less than less than undiscounted as at
1 year 2 years 5years  cashflows  31.12.2020
i
ZFI%E
+ZH
REXS  SIMEE S AMERE =t+-HZ
DiE DR BORSE mEAE REfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEn TR TR
22,008 - - 22,008 22,008
11,419 - - 11,419 11,419
- 29,780 - 29,780 28,416
465 - - 465 465
462 - - 462 456
34,354 29,780 - 64,134 62,764
More than More than Carrying
On demand Tyearbut 2 years but Total amounts
or less than less than less than  undiscounted as at
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows  31.12.2019
ﬁ/‘\
ZE-nF
+ZA
RERY  LIMER SieE  AEERE Z1+-Bz
DI DioE BOREE MERE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEL FEL FEL TET TR
29,637 - - 29,637 29,637
24,796 - - 24,796 24,796
- 13,440 - 13,440 12,224
3,426 - - 3,426 3,426
4,528 - - 4,528 4,480
1,367 710 - 2,077 2,014
63,754 14,150 - 77,904 76,577
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make
strategic decisions.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services, and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

o Mobile phone business

e Mining business

Corporate expenses, corporate assets and corporate
liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments
as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

8. MEREM KU

(a

A2 57 EF R Al 28 57 BF Wt ~ R
w BEREBEZHE

AEBERAFLHRBREZTE
EERRE ((FTEEEBRRE) F
RZREEEHEENER -
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B=+t—HBLEFERN FEBHEEM
Br 2| D - Bﬂﬁ"‘%ﬁ?ﬁ%@?ﬁﬂ
U R BR 5 0 it B R E2HREA R
%ﬁ‘%%ﬁ%’ﬁﬂwt%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%%@o
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BzEE

. BEEEER

. RERET
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. 9EERKINE &

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) AE2#HPERATZHFE 25 - 18
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets - BEREEZHE (&

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE-=ZEF+-B=+—H1
FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
%)
BIEER PRIEETS st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FET
Reportable segment revenue BEMBIRSERF155

from contracts with external HEANZREINARR

customers within scope of EE N EIES S &

HKFRS 15 80,949 - 80,949
Reportable segment profit/(loss) B 23D EREF, (E518) 2,772 (2,540) 232
Depreciation of plant and R R s T EE

equipment 23 - 23
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ B & E T E 552 - 552
Gain on derecognised right-of-use EUH FESRE RIS & 2 WS

assets (468) - (468)
Gain on deemed disposal of RIEHERB ARz E

subsidiaries (6,269) - (6,269)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AT ZWaE (3,125) - (3,125)
Impairment loss recognised in AT B IEE

respect of: R EREIE
— Trade and other receivables, net — & U B 5 BR 20 K EL fth FE U

BRFFER 3,771 - 3,771
— Amount due from — B — Rk B A B IEEH
a non-controlling shareholder YRR 2 FRIE
of a subsidiary - 386 386
— Amount due from an associate —EUR— S A T FIE 224 - 224
- Right-of-use assets —FREEE 431 - 431
Recovery of impairment loss PLIE UL B 57 AR TR E Ah FE R

recognised in respect of trade IRFRFESY 2 B B BRI E]

and other receivables (1,225) - (1,225)
Reportable segment assets AIERNIEE 10,420 2,408 12,828
Additions to non-current assets  JERIEERE 940 - 940

Reportable segment liabilities 2RI EE (3,892) (14,820) (18,712)




154

China Fortune Holdings Limited
FEREERERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR IR R ML

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

8.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. 9EERKINE &

(a) AIZDEIRAIZH7 A M ~ 1R

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets B EEREBEZHE &

and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Profits before income tax

Reportable segment profit

Exchange loss

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Write back of business tax payables upon
deregistration of a subsidiary

Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Motor vehicle expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations)

Rental expenses

Corporate expenses

Finance costs

Consolidated loss before income tax

2020
HK$’000
FET
Wz
AIE2HRDE W m R FE N
80,949
FRERE R AIAT
B 2] D & im A 232
B R 18 (55)
BAFEFABRZMBEEEZ
NFERE (1,025)
I — B AR BB OENE R
891
M EUWA 299
HIEWA 432
ABXH (38)
BT K (BIEEEFH (4,958)
e (29)
ETH (8,767)
BB A (1,153)

FRETISIR AT S B 18 9,171)
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reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continueq)

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— Club memberships
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Others (Note a)

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

— Amounts due to related party, Mr. Lau

— Others (Note b)

Consolidated total liabilities mEBaERE

Note a:  The unallocated corporate assets mainly included i 5ta:
plant and equipment and deposits for the
headquarter in Hong Kong.

Note b:  The unallocated corporate liabilities mainly included ft 5 b:

IIV-F

BB RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

BE

AERNMWEE
RAOEEEEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. OER KK E #)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) AE2#HPERATZHFE 25 - 18

w BEREEZHE (&

2020
HK$’000
THET

12,828

—RBRAFESABRZUFTEE

—gFhgE
—RERFEEEFEY
—H A (Ff5Ea)

AERNHMas
RoEEEAR

—ENRIEALREZRE

—H A (P 5Eb)

lease liabilities for the headquarter in Hong Kong,

accrued salaries, professional fee and audit fee.

4,871
886
18,723
2,027

39,335

18,712

39,835
6,080

64,627

ANECEXESETESHEAR
SBE 2 E-

ROBEXEERTIZVEEE
MEzEESR EitHFE
HEEARZHUE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(@

Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Reportable segment revenue
from contracts with external
customers within scope of
HKFRS 15

Reportable segment loss

Depreciation of plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of:

— Trade and other receivables, net

— Inventories

— Plant and equipment

— Right-of-use assets

— Goodwill

Recovery of write down of
inventories

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current assets
Reportable segment liabilities

8. MEPEKM KU (&

(a) AIZDEIRAIZH7 A M ~ 1R

w BEREEZHE (&

BE_T-NF+A=+—HL

FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
(eZ0)
BREER IR “ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT TFET TFAT
ERUHREEINF155
HEIANZRBINAKR
BN 2R DI U
108,455 - 108,455
A28 (19,175) (1,759) (20,934)
B Rk EITE
1,177 - 1,177
THREEENE
368 - 368
MU T ZIEF Y
HERIE
— U B 5 AR 30 R E fh FE UL
IRFRFEB 4,138 - 4,138
—178 95 - 95
— BB 4,491 - 4,491
—FREEE 205 - 205
—-HE 6,005 - 6,005
FEMRERD
(370) - (370)
AE2RNHEE 60,141 3,678 63,819
FERBEERE 61 - 61
AZRDEEE (37,639) (13,499) (51,138)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. OER KK E #)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) AE2#HPERATZHFE 25 - 18

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

w BEREEZHE (&

and liabilities (Continued)

2019
HK$’000
FET
Revenue Y22
Reportable segment revenue and AE2MRD I W MG E W=
consolidated revenue 108,455
Loss before income tax MRS MAIES1E
Reportable segment loss HE2®RDIEE (20,934)
Fair value loss on financial assets at BAFEFABGZUBEEZ
fair value through profit or loss NEERIE (108)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HERAFEFABTZ
fair value through profit or loss BB EBIE (69)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MR AR EED ZREREE
plant and equipment (675)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of TEREESERR ZREEE
right-of-use assets (626)
Loss on write-off of plant and equipment B Eiis > B8 (1)
Interest income B WA 87
Gain on deregistration of an associate A —EEE AR 2 24
Miscellaneous income TETE U A 407
Motor vehicle expenses HELH (161)
Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations) & T iz (B13EE =+ i) (6,184)
Rental expenses HEM% (365)
Corporate expenses PEZH (3,531)
Finance costs BhE A A (605)

Consolidated loss before income tax

(32,741)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

8.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8.

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continueq)

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— Club memberships
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Others (Note a)

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities
— Tax payables

— Amounts due to related party, Mr. Lau

— Others (Note b)

Consolidated total liabilities

DEER R W (E

(a) A2 ER A28 W« R
w BEREREZHG (&

2019
HK$’000
FEIT
BE
AE2RNHEE 63,819
APDETEESE
—BANFEEHFAEBG U BEE
5,612
—EPEiE 874
- RENIREEEY 232
—HAh (ff5Fa) 400
EEBEEMRE 70,937
afE
A2®NIHasdE 51,138
ROkt EEE
—ERIRIE 4,574
—FETREE A TR 2 IE 27,568
—HAth (ff5Eb) 6,282
RE B ERRE 89,562

Note a:  The unallocated corporate assets mainly included

deposits for the headquarter in Hong Kong.

Note b:  The unallocated corporate liabilities mainly included

lease liabilities for the headquarter in Hong Kong,

accrued salaries, professional fee and audit fee.

Mista: KRPOBEADEETECQRELBLE
B2 E o

MisEb: RPECEERTIBAESHBE
BzHEEBE EBstFHE -FE
BRKRZ#E-



8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(b) Geographical information

(c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

8. MEREM KU

(b) HhiFE

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group’s operations and non-current assets are

situated in the PRC in which most of its revenue was

derived.

Information about major customers

(c)

Revenue from major customers, where each of them

accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue,

are set out below:

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Customer E*
Customer F*
Customer G*
Customer H*

*

ERA
ZFB
EBC
ZFAD
ERAE*
BEF
BEHRG*
BRAH*

The corresponding revenue in the year for this customer

did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the

Group.

(#)

RNEE_SE_TER_ZE—NE
+ZA=+—HULEFE FTEEZ X
%&%mﬁééﬂuw$l mEX

By Ut 5k B I o

EHTEZERZEH
REFEREP WG

(REZEBMEE

EEWZEZ10%8 U ) )T ¢

2020
HK$’000
THET

25,344
19,833
15,044
9,176
N/A FEH
N/A FEH
N/A REH
N/A F3EH

2019
HK$'000
TET

N/A A
N/A 48 F3
N/A 48 F3
N/A A
20,537
19,083
15,494
11,129

Y OREAFEEREZERZERRGDY

A& BB

S E R A EBIB10% ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(d) Revenue

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by
primary geographical market, major products and
service lines and timing of revenue recognition.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

Primary geographical market FEH#E TS

PRC hE
Hong Kong 58
Major product TEER
Mobile phone BE) B

Timing of revenue recognition U & i 3% B RS
At a point in time RE— BRI R,

8. MEPEKM KU (&

(d) Wz
RTEERR WERETBMETS
B E G R AR5 0 48 R W o B A s )
Difse

EREH WD iF

Trading of mobile phone

HEBEHEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAERT THET
71,773 108,455
9,176 -
80,949 108,455
80,949 108,455
80,949 108,455
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Exchange loss

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of:
— Inventories
— Plant and equipment
— Right-of-use assets
— Goodwill (Note 34)
Recovery of impairment loss

recognised in respect of trade and

other receivables

Write back of business tax payables
upon deregistration of a subsidiary

Write back of trade payables

Loss on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Loss on write-off of plant and
equipment

Gain on derecognised right-of-use

assets

Gain on deregistration of an associate

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 33(b))

Gain on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries (Note 33(a))

Government grant (Note)

Note:

9. HftthmKkEE

bE 5 1R

BAFESABERZ
MBEEZATERR
MiFERRZEERIE

—F5
— BB KRB
—(EREEE
-2 (M5 34)

TLIE IR B 57 BR s E A FE W AR
IEESR 2 R E B IR

N B AR R ELCIEN
EHER

MEI &S B 5 8RR
HERATFEFAERZ
MBEEZBIR

T 5 e 3% i EH 2 548

BUHEREREEEZ Wn

SIE—EBEARZ W
HEM B AR Z W
(B 5533(b))
BRIFHEMB AR 2 W
(FF5E33(a))
BB (M 5E)

The government grant of HK$533,000 (2019: HK$ Nil) obtained
from the Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-
epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR Government
for supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the

ESS, the Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll

expenses, and not reduce employee head count below prescribed

levels for a specified period of time. The Group does not have other

unfulfilled obligations relating to this program.

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
(55) (1)
(1,025) (108)
- (95)

= (5,166)
(431) (831)
= (6,005)
1,225 -
891 -

= 23

- (69)

- (1)

468 -

= 24
3,125 -
6,269 -
533 -
11,000 (12,229)

PYsE -

FEREEBFNTHEBRELNERES
BrRBL2E ST &) (TRRLZEETE)) %E1S533,00078 7T
(Z2—NF B WBUFHEE > U/HE
EERENHZ - RBEFRLESE FEEYL
ARERZEMANHFERS > WIEEH
RARFREIABBLEREKFLUT 5L
FtBIM=s AEBRTEEMARBEITES
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowing wholly
repayable within one year
Interest on lease liabilities
Imputed interest on loan from
a related party

11. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arriving at

after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments (Note 13)
— salaries and allowances for other
staffs
— retirement benefit scheme

contribution (excluding directors)

and after crediting:

Interest income

10. BB R &
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
BR—ERNEBHEEN
IRITEENE 166 -
HEaBZHE 54 29
JE—%BEEALTZER
ZEEF B 933 576
1,153 605
11. [RFF 18R AIES 18
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
FRFTEIR AT 18
Bk :
1% EEM N & 1,194 1,016
ERRAREZ 2 FEEMA
80,558 107,444
5B Fe R AT e 23 1,215
FREEETE 552 533
B T pia
—EE=ME (M5E13) 3,671 3,594
—HMME THE 2R
4,833 5,072
—BRIKEF 5T BT
(FEEESE) 256 295
8,760 8,961
REStA
FE WA 299 87
= 370

Recovery of write down of inventories 7 & il 78 # [2] =
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

12. FRGH (%) HX

The amount of income tax (credit)/expense in the SEETEBMARAZSRER) FHx
consolidated statement of comprehensive income ETEEIE
represents:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ BNHARRIE—F B EBH
— Tax for the year —FEERIE 27 -
- Release of provisional tax liabilities —fRRERMHIRIEES (4,574) -

Current tax — PRC Enterprises Income BIHARIE— P E 2 FREHK

Tax (“EIT”) (MEZFrISRI)
— Tax for the year —FERIE - 35
(4,547) 35

Hong Kong =
Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime, RIBESAENERMARG cESEES
the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporations are 2,000,000 7T = i@ Fl 45 #28.25 % Y 77 =
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million are taxed at Wi > MiBiB2,000,000% T2 im A B &
16.5%. #16.5% 091 TR o
Telefortune (China) Investments Limited, a wholly owned K%@’i\ﬁﬁmﬁ NEIREME (FE) BE
subsidiary of the Group was deregistered on 22 May 2020 ERREER_ZEEFRAB-+H
and its provisional tax payables of HK$4,574,000 was sTiH > MEPTENEES,574,00048 T

released to profit or loss accordingly. B
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12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC

The Group’s major operations are being carried out through
its subsidiaries established in the PRC and subject to the
EIT rate of 25% (2019: 25%), unless preferential rates are
applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are located.

On 18 January 2019, the Ministry of Finance in the PRC
issued notice no. 13 of on the Implementation of Inclusive
Tax Reduction Policies for Small and Micro Enterprises.
Corporations with annual taxable income of less than
RMB3 million are qualified for this tax concession. From 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2021, the first RMB1 million
of annual taxable income of the qualifying corporation will
be taxed at 5%, and further RMB2 million annual taxable
income will be taxed at 10%. A TREEFEERFEERA
7], a PRC subsidiary of the Group, is entitled to this tax
concession during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR IR R ML

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

12. FRSH (%) HX (@)

L7

AREBBBERPBEMRILZWEBAGE
FTEEER> WAEW% (ZT—HE
25%) 2 REMEMMEMR  HEER
EBEARZENBABFTER AR o

A ZE—NF—B+N\B> FEFEIBE
HEAR B/ B B R UOR R
RNEISEEN FERFRIAMER
AR 13,000,000t xEERERIL
MEEE- R _ZE—NF—HBE—HBEZZ
T+ B=+—HB cERTEE
AR #1,000,0007T BY £ [ FE 2R R UL A
5% T MR > M H%E A K #2,000,000
TTHF E RN AR Z10%H E 4 o
MIBRAREEREBRLAE (AXEEDN
TERBAR) REE_Z_FE+_H
—t+—HEFEERZBIERBES
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can
be reconciled to the loss before income tax per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

FRPTS TR 18

Loss before income tax

Income tax credit at the domestic
income tax rate of 25%
(2019: 25%) (Note)

AR PTS IR IR E25%

FRiSMIER (M5

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses R AN Z IRFE e &
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEZRRWAZRIE &

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RV IBEERB) BN
and utilisation of tax losses and Eﬁ%ﬁ&T?D MERFEREZ

deductible temporary differences M2

Effect of tax concession granted BRIFRBEEZFE

Effect of different tax rates of group ~ HREMBZEEEE 2
entities operating in EEEBTEREZEE
other jurisdictions

Release of provisional tax liabilities RRERMRIEAE

PRSI (%) /Fx

Income tax (credit)/expense

12. FRSH (%) HX (@)

EFEEZARERIER) FHXEGEE2E
WARZERPISRATEGERRNT -

ZENE 25%) SR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(9,171) (32,741)
(2,293) (8,185)
5,307 3,378
(5,310) (198)
2,060 3,720
(27) (141)
290 1,461
(4,574) -

(4,547) 35
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

12.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$177,017,000
(2019: HK$195,169,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. The tax losses are subject to the final
assessment by the tax authorities in the respective
jurisdictions where the tax losses arising from. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the estimated
unused tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$25,055,000 (2019: HK$48,798,000) that
may be carried forward for a period of five years from their
respective year of origination. The remaining unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$5,195,000 (2019: HK$4,930,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to these deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where
the Group’s operations are substantially based.

12. FRGH (%) HX (&

RiREMAR > AL B G0 B EIK
MEFRGMNZzZHABRIREBELY
A177,017,0008 T (ZE—NF .
195,169,000/ 7t) ~ RIBEEAFELR
BHEENEEE AN BIEBER
B o R A TERI R AOHEF 2R 0 1
WEMFTGst 2 M ARESB 2R IBE IR
RIFEERIBEE st AKBBRIEBEZ
F53849%425,055,0008 T (ZE—HF
48,798,000 ) ' I BEA S FERLE
EBHF R THARERRIEEEBRTHER
HRsEE o

REBEEHFR AEB B INRERER
#95,195,000% 7T (ZZE— L4 : 4,930,000
BIT) cHRAAAESBAIINRGRE

B LU EH FE SR AR E R I WMz 0]
MG R ZRRENELERBEE

MiEE AR B RE ISR R WA ) R
BRAZCERERRE.
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non-executive director on 1 September 2020.

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS EEiNE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2019: FRAEBNHENS TN (CE—HLFE . £
seven) directors during the year were as follows: ) EEZEZE0TF .
Lau Law Fok Wai
Siu Ying Chun Lam Bao Kang Lo Hou Ming,
(“Mr. Lau”) Kwan WangYu  Man Kit Rong WaiShun  GaoFei Zhenyang Eddie Total
NE
(B%%)  BiEA IR WX HEREE  H4ER B BE¥ RS ek
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) ~ (Noted)  (Note 5)
(1) (W) (zE3)  (WigE4)  (WEE5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEr TEx TEx TEzx TEx Tz TEx  TEx  TErn
2020 -k -3
Fees ik - 125 - 83 67 125 - 40 | 481
Salaries and allowances HEREE 2,359 - 600 - - - 185 - - 3,144
Retirement benefit scheme BRI B
contribution 1 - 35 - - - - - - 46
Total emoluments ek 2,370 125 635 83 67 125 185 40 4 3,671
2019 —E-hE
Fees FiEa - 100 - 100 100 100 - - - 400
Salaries and allowances HeREs 2,707 - 445 - - - 4 - - 3,156
Retirement benefit scheme RINERI R
contribution 3 - 35 - - - - - - 38
Total emoluments ikt 2,110 100 480 100 100 100 4 - - 3,594
Notes: B 5T
1. Mr. Lam Man Kit resigned as independent non-executive 1. MXBEEENR_Z_ZTFNA—BHMET
director on 1 September 2020. BIUIERITES
Mr. Bao Kang Rong resigned as non-executive director on 1 2. MIBEEAEER-ZZTZHFENA—HEHME
September 2020. BUIEHMITES
Mr. Gao Fei was appointed as the executive director on 27 3. EREERZZE—NAF+ZEZ+tH
December 2019 and resigned as executive director on 1 BEZAARTES IR _SE_ZFTENA
September 2020. —HEEHRITES-
Mr. Hou Zhenyang was appointed as the non-executive 4. 1#5/3&5‘?:55&_7_7&?15 HIEZ
director on 1 September 2020 and re-designated as the EAFENTES TR _E-—F1WA
executive director on 19 April 2021. +hBHBEASRITES-
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie was appointed as the independent 5. EEAAENR-_Z_ZEFNE—HEZ

ERBIUFRITES-
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14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEME
Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AEBRAURSHALTH ERmA (Z
the Group, two (2019: two) were directors of the Company BE—NE MO ARNATES HINGEH
whose emoluments are included in Note 13 above. The NEXMEFI83 G F=fI (CE—HE: =
emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) individuals i) AEZEBESWT .

were as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Salaries and allowances ¥ B2 Ak 1,493 1,714
Retirement benefit BIRBFFHBIH R
scheme contribution 53 54
1,546 1,768
Their emoluments were within the following band: ZEREEZMENFE T EE
2020 2019
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEHE BE&EB
Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T AR 3 3
None of the five highest paid individuals waived any NAEEEBEEERN AiESHF A+
emoluments in current and prior years. 1 4 A = U AR T B <2 o
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no HE _ T _Z¥FA_ZFE—NEF+_AH
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid —t+—HIEFE AEEMERAURS
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join WAL (BEES INTAME (FAHR
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of EBREMARNTENMATEEF 225

office. TR BERR R E o
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15. DIVIDEND

16.

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior

years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of

reporting period (2019: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the
year is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$219,000 (2019
loss: HK$26,093,000) divided by 96,697,242 (2019:
96,697,242 (Restated)) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
loss per share for 2019 and 2020 has been adjusted
for the share consolidation under capital reorganisation
and the Rights Issue completed after the end of the
reporting period on 11 January 2021 and 10 February
2021 respectively.

The comparative numbers for the prior year have been
restated as though that the share consolidation and
rights issue had taken place on 1 January 2019.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

No diluted loss per share is presented as the effect
of any potential ordinary shares is anti-dilutive for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

15. g &

REFERBEFERN > BEIKN SHIK
RS @iﬁiﬂﬁxu%ﬁﬁﬁ‘})ﬁ&@%%

(=

16. BB &

(a

(b)

—NEFE | o
7 (E518)

GREXEF - (F518)

FRERELRBAIDREBEALGE
BAELEARREF219,0008 7T (Z
T — HEKIE 1 26,093,000 7T) B
MEANBEITE BRI, 697,242

& — L4 1 96,697,24208 (B &
H)) srE o

HEZE-NERZIZEIZFER
ﬁm@am BREBNBREHER
BOMNR_ZE—F—B+—8B&
2B+ HRERAEAR
kBT ®REHZKRMDE M

FHEE o

F—FENLERHBEFELES  JHU
BRpeaMHRERER_E—NLEF—
B—H#&1Te

ERBEEF - (B5E)
RBEZZ_ZR-_ZF-AF+Z
A=+—HLEFE> EEﬁMEﬁE?‘%

BRREREENE  WRAZ2ER
BEEsE-
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST

At 1 January 2019

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Additions from business combination
Write-off

At 31 December 2019

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries
Write-off

At 31 December 2020

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2019

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the year

Impairment loss

Eliminated on write-off

At 31 December 2019

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries
Eliminated on write-off

At 31 December 2020

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

17. RE R &1

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
Rifh~
HERE RERRE RE HEIR st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET ThET FHERT T FET
D%
RZZ—-h&—EF—H 10,283 3,141 2,002 6,197 21,713
ERAE {171 (33) ) (109) (321)
RE 535 158 - - 693
REEBAHNRE - 61 - - 61
b6z (836) (858) - - (1,694)
RZIE-h&E+ZA=1+—H 9,811 2,469 2,084 6,088 20,452
ERAE 341 119 28 381 869
HE - 7 - - 7
HEWBAE - (63) - - (63)
b6z (5,858) - - - (5,858)
RIZEZZEE+ZHF=1+—H 4,294 2,532 2,112 6,469 15,407
R ERAE
RZZ-h&—F—H 4,616 3,119 2,072 6,197 16,004
ERAE (172) (33) ) (109) (322)
FEEE 1,192 23 - - 1,215
REBE 5,011 155 - - 5,166
M ER (836) (857) - - (1,693)
RZZE—h&E+-A=1+—H 9,811 2,407 2,064 6,088 20,370
ERAE 341 119 27 381 868
FERE - 23 - - 23
HEME B EER - (22) - - 22)
MR ERR (5,858) - - - (5,858)
RZIEZZEE+ZHA=1+—H 4,294 2,527 2,091 6,469 15,381
fREE
RIZ2Z2E+-F=+—H - 5 21 - 26
RIE-A&E+ZA=1+—H - 62 20 - 82
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18. MINING RIGHT 18. IRUEHE
HK$'000
FET
COST ﬁszI:
At 1 January 2019 A ZE—-NF—HF—H 419,520
Exchange adjustments R R (7,360)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hhE+B=+—H 412,160
Exchange adjustments b 2 o 25,760
At 31 December 2020 A _E_EFE+_"_HB=+—H 437,920
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND Rt E R E
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2019 N ZE—NFE—HF—H 419,520
Exchange adjustments fE R oE (7,360)
At 31 December 2019 RIE2E—hE+_B=+—H 412,160
Exchange adjustments bE 25 25,760
At 31 December 2020 A _E"EFE+_"_H=+—H 437,920
CARRYING VALUE RmEE
At 31 December 2020 R_E2_EF+_F=+—H -

At 31 December 2019 RZE—hhE+B=+—H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

18.

MINING RIGHT (Continuea)

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC.

Mining exploitation/operating permit

After the expiration of a 5-year mining exploitation permit
on 25 September 2012, Sifa Mining renewed the mining
operating permit for 2 years from the Ministry of Land
and Resources of the PRC (Fp#E A B HFEE &R
(“MLR”), under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out
exploration activities only, but not exploitation activities.
The latest 2-year mining operating permit was expired
on 25 September 2016. Since then, the Group had been
preparing for the application of renewal for the mining
operating permit.

On 21 December 2017, the Department of Land and
Resources of Hubei Province of the People’s Republic
of China (the “DLR”) issued an announcement (the “DLR
Announcement”) in respect of the deadline of application
of renewal for the expired mining operating permit. The
DLR instructed the owners of the expired mining operating
permits as identified in the DLR Announcement had to
furnish the application procedures for the renewal before
28 February 2018. If the owners fail to do so, they were
required to de-register the mining operating permits before
31 March 2018 by themselves or the DLR will de-register
their permits instead. The Group, through its lawyer,
submitted a letter on 8 February 2018 to the DLR for the
clarification of the Group’s situation on whether the Group
was allowed to extend the renewal application deadline or
submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
future.

18. IRHEHE (&

%F&hﬁ%?%h¢lmtéﬂE$
EITRERT BRI ER -

FRIREF A 4%

IFEAREFIIN __E—-—_F 1A
“t+hHEWE BEREFEETEAR
HMERETERS (HLERI) R
AWM ERRIEST A8 - BRI SRR
ERAEETEREEMIFRAREH - &
MERRESFAIZENR T —RFNA
“t+HBEWm-BIt AEBEIEEFERS
BERIEST PR

A — F

A ZE—+HFF+ZAZ+—H FEAR
HAMEMIbEE T ERE ((ELERE)
EMRFEEECEERRETIECRE
HREHAM (B EREAM) oFE+
HREEN BLEREAMIEAEZER
MIREF B ZEBABR S —N\&F
B+ N \HAERHEBEEZREER-
WEBARETHRBFRER AFEAR
- N\FZA=+—HpIB1THHEE
Eera s SRt B RES A
ﬂcK%l%:%—AE:EAEE@H
EMEELIERERRZ SRS U A
ERERECEELREERABHZREBHR
HP A BRIHREST I ERBES
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18. MINING RIGHT (Continuea)

Mining exploitation/operating permit (Continueqd)

Up to the date of the 2017 Annual Report, the Group had
not received the reply from the DLR and was not able to
furnish the application before the deadline. The directors
were of the opinion that there was a material uncertainty
on whether the Group would be successful in the future
application for the mining operating permit because of
the DLR Announcement. The directors had factored this
into their assessment of the recoverable amount of the
Group’s mining right and related plant and equipment,
and the carrying amount of the related deferred tax liability
(the “mining activities related assets and liability”) as at 31
December 2017, and on the assumption that the Group
could not renew the permit, provided a full impairment of
the mining right of HK$174,589,000 and related plant and
equipment of HK$8,965,000 and derecognised the related
deferred tax liability of HK$41,116,000 in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group,
through its lawyer, has tried to approach DLR by telephone
calls and resubmission of the letter sent in February 2018
for the clarification of the Group’s situation. However, DLR
did not make reply to the Group’s enquiries. The directors
were advised by the lawyer that, in accordance with the
rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group has lost its
mining right and no longer entitled to any benefit to be
derived from the mining right.

18. IRHEHE (&

FRIESF A 4% ()

BEEZZ—tHEFHREHHP - AEBLX
WEaEt+ERECEE BRERERR
HRAIIRHBF EERA AEEH
BEGHRIBFERIETIZRERLTEIR
BAMMEETEERTEEE EENT
EREBR _SE—tE+_A=+—H
2 IR UERE K AERA R B2 e 5% {8 BT UN [0l & %A
MABREIERIBEEREE (THREXEK
EEEEREE)) B RILEERZ
TR AEBREEETIHE ARR
174,589,000 8 T R EE & &
48,965,000 Lt 2 BRI E A > 1L
REEZZ—tHF+ZA=+—HLEF
EREmZTBCHEREMELERIESE
41,116,000 7T °

REE_T-N\F+ZBA=+—HLF
B rEECEBHEEMERUBERE
MEXR—_ZT—-—N\F_RELZRMHZ
FREBERTERE LUBEAEEZIE
MeAM BLtERBILELOBEAER
EH - EFRERMEN REPEZER
RO FEEBREHRBEERTEER
BERBEREEZEMM -
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18. MINING RIGHT (Continuea)

19.

Mining exploitation/operating permit (Continueqd)

The directors had carefully reassessed and reviewed the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of the
mining business (the “CGU") to which the mining right is
allocated. As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the directors
determined the recoverable amount of the CGU should be
nil as the directors are of the opinion that the DLR is unlikely
to grant the mining operating permit to the Company nor
to other market participants, if any. The directors have also
considered the fair value of the plant and equipment related
to the mining business is minimal as most of them were the
infrastructure that attached to the mining site which were
not removable and not saleable.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. IRHEHE (&

FRIESF A 4% ()

EXZCEHENMTEREREDEFE
BzREXBRELSBU(REEL

B 2 EEE- R _T—-hERZ
ETZFF+"R=+—H EFETERSE
EEBUZIWOERERT RERKE
ERRBELEREARAEBDRAT
Himi528E WA) RUHFRESFAIE -
EETRARRBEZ 2 EBBE KRB
ZRTPEBRE RRAREBORE KRR 1%
7 HES 2 MY B AR R E ) HA A HrbR
BIHE -

190. ERHEEE

Properties
lease for
own use

BREYMEHRE

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hh&E—B—H 93
Additions NE 1,303
Additions from business combination REEBEHZRE 1,134
Depreciation e (533)
Impairment loss BEEE (831)
Exchange adjustments fE R R 10
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-—NE+ZB=+—H 1,176
Additions hE 940
Depreciation T EE (552)
Derecognition BUBRESR (1,021)
Impairment loss AIERE (431)
Exchange adjustments b 2 s 2L 2
At 31 December 2020 R_E_TF+_A=+—H 110
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

20.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain leases
were early terminated due to downsize of the business. The
effect of exercising the termination options was a decrease
in recognised right-of-use assets of HK$1,021,000 and
lease liabilities of HK$1,489,000 which is detailed in Note
30.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

10. ERAEEE (@

R&EE_Z-TF+ZB=+—HL
FE -ATHEEAREGBAMRERZ
IEofTEARIERZEELACRADEARE
EEMMEEASBR/L1,021,0008 T K&
1,489,000 7T » EFL I 5E305% 4t ©

20. REE QAT ZRE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET

Cost of investments in unlisted RIELTBMERBD ZRENAK

associates
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20.

BB IR R M T

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s associates are as follows:

Form of Place of
business incorporation/
Name of associate structure operation
ML
il YNGR ERgEEpt  EEMR

IEREGEREBRAR Incorporated PRC

(“Beijing Feiying”)

TRREGERKRERAST ALz el
(MERARE)

Ever Trillion Investments Limited  Incorporated British Virgin
(“Ever Trillion”) Islands

Ever Trillion Investments AL HBELES

Limited (T Ever Trillion J)

Notes:

(@) Beijing Feiying had become a subsidiary of the Group on 27
December 2019. The Group continued to share the results
of Beijing Feiying under the equity method during the period

from 1 January 2019 to 27 December 2019.

Details of the deemed step acquisition from associate to

subsidiary is disclosed in Note 34.

(b)  Referring to the deemed disposal from subsidiary to associate
as disclosed in Note 33(a), Beijing Feiying has become back
an associate of the Company on 1 September 2020. The
Group shared the results of Beijing Feiying under equity
method from 1 September 2020 to 31 December 2020

accordingly.

(c) Ever Trillion was deregistered in January 2019.

(d) The amount due from Beijing Feiying of HK$224,000
(equivalent to RMB200,000) is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. The amount due from Beijing Feiying
is fully impaired during the year ended 31 December 2020
based on the accounting policy stated in Note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.

20. REER

AEEKE

BZIRE (&

ANEFFEWTF

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital

held by the Group

Principal activities

sEERAEET

REEENEAL

2020

33.5%
(Note b)

(Fff5tb)

IBEH
2019

- Trading in second-hand mobile
(Note a) phones and provision of
marketing services
(fzta) BE_FBHEERRMUTS
B R

- Investment holding
(Note c)

(Ff3tc) REZRK

MsE -

IRRER_Z—-—AE+-A-+tH
AT EBNMBAR KN _T—hF—
A—BEZZ—NEFE+ZAZ+tHH
o AEREEREDLAZFHEIERRERN
ES-E

KBMERBIWB AR IR D P U
Z BN FE34IREE ©

ZLARMIY 5133 (a) PR BB VL M B A B El
MERBZRELE  ERREBRZZ
“ZFNBE—BBAXAMRALRRAZHE
REIA AEBMR_Z-ZHFNA—
HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HHH[ER
BRI EDLIERRBEZEE-

NE—RRHEEEMR-

Ever Trillioni? Z& —

FE Wb = ¢ 2 7 IE224,0008 7T (10 &
R AE1200,0007T) 2 KR 28 &%
BEREE-ERGREMBHRRM 4T
Mg BUBIERREZRBEERE
EEZEF+_HA=+—HILEFEXR
BURE -
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continueq) 20. RS NE 288 (&
Beijing Feiying IERFE
Since 2016, the Group discontinued the recognition of its oS —NENUR NEB DK IFRIH
share of losses of an associate, Beijing Feiying, because MEE AL RE Z BB JTyAR A
the Group’s share of losses exceeded its interest in Beijing EFHECEMEEBRBENIIRRE Z #
Feiying. The financial information of the unrecognised share o RMEIAELEE ZMFEE R
of loss is summarised below: T
01.09.2020 to 01.01.2019 to
31.12.2020 27.12.2019
01.09.2020F 01.01.2019&
31.12.2020 27.12.2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Unrecognised share of loss of KERDEBE AT 2
associate for the period HREE (44) (8,031)

21.

Accumulated unrecognised share of Rt KR D HEEAT 2
loss of associate E518 (11,741) (11,697)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 1. BATFEAAEBEZ ZHMEEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Non-current assets (Note (a)) JERENE E (Mizta)
Unlisted equity investments FEMRERE 67 222
Unlisted fund investment ELEHEEKRSE 3,897 4,469
3,964 4,691

Current assets (Note (b)) mENEE (Mizkb)

Listed equity investments in the PRC 1 E F R ERE 907 921
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continueq)

Notes:

(@) The directors of the Company intend to hold these
investments for long term strategic purpose.

Unlisted equity investments are investments in couple of
private entities incorporated in different jurisdictions that
engaged in different businesses. The Group holds 2.44% to
15% in the equity interest of these private entities.

Unlisted fund investment is the investment of 13.3% in the
equity interest of a fund which focuses on the investment in
the property market, including a property development project
carried in the PRC.

(b)  The listed equity investments are classified within Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy.

. BATFEAAEGZMBEE

(&)
GER
@ FADEFREGZTRAS FRBBE

R

RETRABEANTEBAEE M
BRI BRETEAELNSHEERIRE
NEERZSEMABEIFE2.44%E15%
Mo

RETEEREANR —BEINYEDS
(BERPEETH-—EYEERER)
WEEH18.3%EmZEE -

EFTREREDBEA R TEBMRNE —
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22. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS

COST
At 1 January 2019
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2020

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2020

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing FIER ot A BT R B
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which

22. GG

5%
RZZE—hh&E—B—H
PE R AR

A TE-AFE+ZA=1+—H
BERAE

RIZ-ZF+"_HF=+—H
A
\_g hNE—A—A8»

F-AE+ZA=Z+—HR
“EIEF+TZA=1+—H

IR
AZEoEE+-A=+—H

TE-NF+ZRB=+—H

represents the second-hand market price less cost of

disposal.

HK$'000
THET

1,373

1,370
12

1,382

496

886

874

SRR EREERARERN SR BERRE
DRER > AU E
TRBEAFERBEERESEE T =F
MIGER L&A -
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Mobile phone business BENEEER
— finished goods —& L m - 26

No cost of sales recognised as expense for the year BE_E-EF+_A=+—HIFE">
WEEERS A ZHERA BB
SRFEEMIMELE ZFEMEERE (Z

T—H,45 : 370,000 7T) ©

ended 31 December 2020 were recovery of write down of
inventories (2019: HK$370,000) which was caused by the
increase in the net realisable value.

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. FEUL B 5 R K H (th FE UL BR =

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#ET FET

Trade receivables FEUWEE 5 BR 3R 3,955 8,379
Less: accumulated allowance B REEE (8,448) (3,250)
507 5,129

Value-added-tax receivables FEU I ERR 276 356
Prepayments to suppliers B HER 2 I8 28,037 27,708
Other receivables and deposits HEWRR RZ S 11,431 14,509
Less: accumulated allowance B RETEE (36,959) (31,199)
Trade and other receivables FEUS B 57 BR Fh K H i FE UK BR X 3,292 16,503
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) The Group generally requests for full prepayment from

its trade customers but it also allows credit period
of 30 to 90 days for certain trade customers. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance) presented based on the invoice date at
the end of reporting period:

0 to 30 days 0E30H
31 to 90 days 312 90H
91 to 365 days 91&E365H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines its credit limits. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed periodically. Majority of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
no default payment history.

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade
debts. The following is an aged analysis of the carrying
amounts of trade debts that were past due at the end
of reporting period but for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss because management are
of the opinion that the fundamental credit quality of the
customers has not deteriorated.

Less than 90 days past due A EA/ D90 H
Over 90 days but less than A HAE 890 H
365 days past due E/0523865H

24. [N & 5 AR ™R B H fth & U AR 7R

(#)
@ TEB-—HREXEZEFANZR

RE BTG TETESEFP=T
ENTRZEEY  -RBEEHRZ
ERWEZER (EHRER) RER
BHIZSIZ R DTN T -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET THAT
- 5,023

- 25

507 81

507 5,129

NIRRT E P AT RER G EE
AEFZEEEE RARAEEER
B EHRSRTER ZRE - AE
DRRBRTRBAEZEBEE Z IR
AL FEE T AR

FEBTEREZERFTEETE
e U TRARRESHAREARER
EEERRERZEAEEERL
AR A 1T 5 25 A B [ 3t 4 1 LR B
BEERZESENZREERE
Do

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
- 25

507 81

507 106
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Included in the other receivables as at 31 December
2019 were advances of HK$3,366,000 to Mr. Dai’s
mother (“Mrs. Dai”). Mr. Dai was a non-controlling
shareholder of one of the Group’s subsidiaries. The
advances were unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. During the year ended
31 December 2020, Mrs. Dai partially settled the
advances in cash. The remaining balances of
HK$2,700,000 due from her was disposed of through
the disposal of subsidiaries in September 2020 (Note
33(b)).

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables

50

Balance at beginning of year fﬁ%ﬂ & Br

Exchange adjustments PE R 2

Impairment losses recognised FERNER ZHERE
during the year

Reversal of impairment loss R R EEEE(D]
recognised

Written off of allowance as A 1 R A 75 R BT Uk [
uncollectible

Balance at end of year FERERR

24. [N B 5 AR ™R B H fth & U AR 7R

(&)
b) RZE—hhF+_A=+—HZ
Eﬁﬁ}‘&“u&zﬁﬁ LB ERELER R

(c)

(T&EERA] ) #383,366,000%
TL o BAETDNAREEREF KB
NEZIEESIMERR - ZFBREB
MmEA - T BERERERER -
HE-Z-_FTF+-_A=+—8H1t
FE BEAXAUNBRSH>BEEE
Koo YR 2 #:%82,700,0008 L2
BEBR_ZT_TFALALEWBER
a1 i & M 5E33(b) ©

BRI B 5 AR m B B E UG AR 7
RIRIEEZ 25
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TFET
34,449 30,969
2,187 (557)
3,837 4,256
(66) (118)
- (101)
40,407 34,449
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

The amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of HK$386,000 (equivalent to RMB344,700)
is impaired during the year ended 31 December 2020
based on the accounting policy stated in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group. Included in
cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2020 are the
amounts in RMB of approximately RMB9,557,000 (2019:
RMB15,978,000) and USD of approximately USD2,301,000
(2019: USD2,000) in form of cash on hand and at banks
respectively. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

25.

26.

P, FE 1 Bt /8 2 B FR 4 1 1 B
RZMIE

EEHRAERE TS ERAREREER-

ERNGEMBRENF4FAN T
KoUMW B AR IEZESERERZRIE
386,000 7t (FHE KN AR 1344,7007T)
ER8E_Z_TEHF+"_HA=+—HIL
FERE-

REKRFTFEY

AEBZRESERESEEBYETEULRE
EEHMERBEEBEARBRET
FE-R_ZEF+ZRA=+—8"
RERREEEMWEREUARERE
T EZFBERBITRESNGOAR
9,557,000 (ZE—HE: AR
15,978,0007t) K2 #J2,301,000%& 75 (=&
— % 1 2,000%7T) c ARBARSEHRR
MAEMERE-

IRITIRE R F B IRIT I RAF REREF) B -
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. FE{] B2 53 BE 2k & HL fth FE < BE 2X
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables NS ERZENMNESZEDNIZEEHH
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting ZYZRE DWW
period:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFHET

Trade payables: FESE SZERRN
0 to 90 days 0ZE90H - 1,269
Over 90 days H#iE90H 248 349
248 1,618
Value-added-tax payables FETIBER = 18
Prepayments from customers BRIEMRIE 16 1,033
Other payables and accruals HMtENERRRESER 21,760 28,019

22,024 30,688
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28. BANK BORROWING 28. $R17E &S
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT
Secured bank borrowing BRBIRITEE
- repayable within one year — AR —FRNEER - 4,480
The bank borrowing bore interest at 0.1% plus the prime RITEETLIZOA%NPEAREBITRE
rate of the People’s Bank of China and was repayable by BHXRABE M ER—FASMEAEEZ -
two instalments within one year.
The bank borrowing was secured by i) the personal RITEEN)ERAEE XERBIRHENE
guarantee given by Mr. Gao Fei and his spouse and i) a MNIER > LURINVIERREN— &R R EIR
property located in the PRC given by a former shareholder HA PR PEN—EEY) EEIRIF o
of Beijing Feiying.
The bank borrowing was fully repaid during the year. WITEESERERNBHER
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. g &
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
EEREE B
2020 2019 2020 2019
’000 '000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Tz Th TERT FTET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EREE0BTZEER
Authorised Py 2,000,000 2,000,000 200,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid BRITRERKT 917,779 917,779 91,778 91,778
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases its office premises. Leases are negotiated

for an average term of two years and rentals are fixed over

the relevant lease terms.

Balance as at 1 January 2019
Additions

Additions from business combination
Interest expense

Lease payments

Exchange difference

Balance as at 31 December 2019
Additions

Interest expense

Lease payments

Derecognition

Exchange difference

Balance as at 31 December 2020

0. HE&®RE

FEFEZE-EA

AEEEBEBRAEYE -HOBEZF
TR mE MBMERRNEESE
=o

Properties

leased for

own use

BREYMEHRAE

HK$’000

TFET

N ZE—NFE—HB—HZ&ER 93
RE 1,303
REBEHBSHZAE 1,134
FMERZ 29
HEMR (551)
ERESE 6
RIZE—NF+IZA=+—BHZ&EKR 2,014
nE 940
MERZ 54
HENR (1,067)
BUH RS (1,489)
ERER 4
N _ECEFET_A=+—HZ&EHR 456

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the effect

of exercising termination options was a decrease in
recognised lease liabilities of HK$1,489,000 and right-of-
use assets of HK$1,021,000 which is detailed in Note 19.

BHE_ZT-_ZF+RB=+— E&E
B 1EREEZEEAERRD =
%&ﬁ%%ﬁéﬁ»mw&mm%m&
1,021,000 75> KT sE195%E 4t o
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 30. 1 HE&E ©&)

FEFEZEMAN (B)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

REBEENMNRZ BB RIAT -

Future lease payments are due as follows:

Future lease

payments Interest Present value

RRBELR FE RE

31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2020 2020

ZEI%E ZZIEE t- Jmt- 23

+ZB=+—-H +ZB=+—H +ZRA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AT FTHET FTHET

Not later than one year FER—F 462 6 456
Later than one year and BR—EBTERME

not later than two years - - -

462 6 456

Future lease

payments Interest Present value

RRBEMNTR HE RE

31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2019 2019

—nE —hE —hE

+ZBA=1+—H +-A=+—H +ZA=+—4H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT TAERT TAT

(Note) (Note) (Note)

(M5E) (F35) (Pt &F)

Not later than one year FER—F 1,367 60 1,307
Later than one year and BR—EETERME

not later than two years 710 3 707

2,077 63 2,014
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

31.

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The present value of lease liabilities are analysed as follows:

Current liabilities mENEE
Non-current liabilities ERENEE
Lease liabilities HEaE

Aggregate undiscounted commitments 58 AR & > Sk B IR A HE4E

for short term lease

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 28 May 2014 which was effective at the
same day and will expire on 28 May 2024. The primary
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives to directors,
eligible employees and other qualified persons who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole.

30.AE&E @

FEFEZEMAN (B)
HEREZRESHUT

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hHF
+-—H=+—H +-_B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
456 1,307
- 707
456 2,014
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET

%8
161 593

N.URNDBERTRZRS

ARBRZE—MERR =+ /\ B
—EERESE (T518)) " HRERE
¥OoUWRR _E_MNERARB -+ /N\HE
mestEIZ T EANBMEFERRHAE
EEEENmBFHIRIFHBREA
FEBRERMZES GEREERAMSE
B ALHETRE-
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continueq)

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (i) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (iii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

At 31 December 2019 and 2020, there were no outstanding
shares in respect of which options had been granted.

N.URNBERARZRE (&

RIFFTE EETHREZRET AR E]
BEENESERNAEAEEERENR
BEHARBEEBRAATEBRERZ
FAEBAERKEE QRN EMBEEAT 2
frRE=E-EE - HEF KB -FH -5
HE EFHEAXNBH SEEEBNE
MEER S A AP EFE T I ZEM
EBETBBEARABRG 2 ERE EREE
BABLROKRMDEE  ()VROPREEHE
BRTE B A PR 2 W B R (i) IR D I B IE R
REEEHBAMAEIZBEHIMZ
FHRHEBZRSE > MiBH 2 BRE
REZRDBBERZSURRAFTREE
TRAEZ10% AR -

RIEAR N B IRERE LA ()RR FT BT
AR IE Z HEARGQE > T EB Y
KNS T AIEFEBEEITRMN Z10% > K (ii)
BERMBAREAN+ZEBEHABERER
EREEHEREZBEEZETRESE
TROBE  THEBHARREAEER
BTN Z1%°

BREARENRNTRMINZHBAT
DUz AR MR H 2 BRES

FEMBITZER-
RZE-—NAER-_F-FTE+_-AH

SR IEDEEERE S EED
TR o

189



190

China Fortune Holdings Limited
FEREERERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

l|‘

BB IR R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

32.

33.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

A government grant of HK$5,700,000 (2019:
HK$5,600,000) (equivalent to RMB5,000,000) was awarded
to a subsidiary of the Group by the PRC local government
agencies as an incentive primarily to encourage and
support its business development in local district. Under the
terms of this government grant, the grant would be recalled
if the subsidiary could not meet certain level of accumulated
Value-added tax (“VAT”) and EIT payment during a period of
three years up to 2021.

The government grant was disposed of from the Group
through the disposal of subsidiaries in September 2020
(Note 33(b)).

DISPOSAL

(a) Deemed disposal from subsidiary to associate in
2020

During the year, Beijing Feiying has become an
associate of the Group by a deemed disposal.

On 1 September 2020, a subsidiary of the Group
and Mr. Gao has resolved to terminate the Acting-in-
Concert Agreement entered into between them. Upon
the termination of the Acting-in-Concert Agreement
with Mr. Gao, the Group no longer has the control of
Beijing Feiying.

32. BT #Bh

ANEE—-EKHB LB EPERE MBS
14 18 5% 1 BT 48 805,700,000 75 (&
— £ 5,600,00087t) (FHERARE
5,000,0007T) 1EARE) FEATBI M
FHREM 2 272 R - IRIRZ AT B
ZHRIFOHEZMBABREEZS - —
FIE=FHPBAELIERSE TRAIEER
(MEER) REEMERMAKFE A
B = R UR[E] °

BZF“@H)JEEEZIKEI RTEERFENA
BHENRBASMEE (F5E33()) °

33.HEFEIE

(a) R-FE_FFRMBLFTINHER
BEZHIELHEEFRE

FRIERREEBRIFHEFTEMN
REERZHEAT

R TEEBFNRA—A> ZIS%I—F?
MEBABSRESRERZRIERSE
BIEJ I —RITE & o ,%%JJ:E'—LEH‘E
ETUN—BTHHBRER FEEE
EHIRRE 2 1ZH
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33. DISPOSAL (Continued)

(a) Deemed disposal from subsidiary to associate in

(b)

2020 (Continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Beijing Feiying
and its subsidiaries as at the date of disposal were as

follows:

Plant and equipment

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Amount due from non-contolling interests
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related parties

Net liabilities disposed of
Non-controlling interests
Release of translation reserve
Gain on deemed disposal

Consideration for deemed disposal

Cash received
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in
subsidiary disposed

Net outflow of cash from the disposal

Disposal of subsidiaries in 2020

On 29 September 2020, Shanghai Yuanjia entered
into the Agreement with Guangzhou Wanchuang, a
non-controlling shareholder of Chongging Yuanjia,
pursuant to which Shanghai Yuanjia has agreed to sell
and Guangzhou Wanchuang has agreed to acquire
the 51% of Chongaqing Yuanjia equity shares for a
total consideration of approximately RMB8,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,568,000).

IIV-F

BB RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

3B.HEEIE (&

(a) R-FE_FFUMBRETEHER

BAZHIEHEFE (&
IERREREWE 2SR EEHE
2o #pNEEREBEZ AFENT
HK$’000
FAT
B 41
FE 31
FE U B 52 BR F s H At RIS AR =R 5,779
FEUIE R M s 7R I8 6,190
RBERIREEEY 222
FET B BRI A AE (T AR (17,967)
FEIREE AN 2 RIE (5,016)
BEHEZBEFEE (10,720)
RIS 4,357
RRMEREE 94
BIEHESEEZ WS 6,269
RIEHEFTEZAE -
BUIRE -
B EBEHEZHBATRER
HEEEY (222)
HEFEZRE M FEE (222)

(b) R-FE_FFHEWBAE

i

—ZEFEAB-+HHLE
EEUEBEEZFERMERRE
MBEIFTIIZME B> L8R
ERERHEMEMNEAERENE
EEREEERMZ51% BRE
WA NE 8,400,000t (FHE
9,568,000 7T) °

R4S
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33. DISPOSAL (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries in 2020 (Continued)

33.4E

(b)

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Chongqging

Yuanjia and its subsidiaries at the date of disposal were

as follows:

Trade and other receivables (Note)
Amount due from Shanghai Yuanijia
Trade and other payables

Tax payables

Government grant (Note 32)

Net assets disposed of

Exchange reserve released on disposal
Non-controlling interest

Gain on disposal

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Amount due from Shanghai Yuanjia

Note:

FE US B8 57 BR 30 K ELfth fE
FEW EiBizE 2 I8
FET & 5 BR R R ELfh fE
FE(T IR IB

BT Bh (BP5E32)

BHEZEERE

P E MR ER 2 FE S RE
FEEESI MR
HEFEZ Wm

BAE

BT EN
Bl L BBRRE 2R

Including in the trade and other receivables is the remaining
balance of HK$2,700,000 due from Mrs. Dai (see Note 24(b)).
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FH (&
AZEFHEHEMBRF ()

EEERKAWNBARNRLERN
ZRHNEEREBRZATERT
B

HK$’000
FTERT

WeBR R (ME5T) 3,755
9,568

I BRAR (4,791)
(39)

(5,700)

2,793

(4)
3,654
3,125

9,568

9,568

T -

ENEZERIREMENSERCIERE
&k A Z 45882,700,000% ¢ (RMTsE

24(b)) °
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Deemed step acquisition from associate to subsidiary in
2019

Beijing Feiying has become a subsidiary of the Group by a
deemed step acquisition in 2019.

On 27 December 2019, Mr. Gao Fei who helds 33.5%
equity interest of Beijing Feiying committed to follow the
voting direction of the Group by virtue of a signed Acting-
in-Concert Agreement entered into between a subsidiary
of the Group and Mr. Gao Fei with no consideration. Since
then, the Group has obtained the control of Beijing Feiying
in both of its shareholders’ and directors’ meetings.

4. EBEH

ZE-NEFHBE L EEINE L AR

RIE-NAEERREERD T WEM
HEEENBAR -

RIZ-AFE+ZAZ+EtH aREtE
(FEIERRE33.5% K1) AEREAR
EE-—HNBARASRILETUNE
BE-—HROIBEZEAEBHERLEER
BEET - BREE  AEERFILRR
BRRNESGHRAEGE-
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Deemed step acquisition from associate to subsidiary in

2019 (Continued)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of Beijing
Feiying as at the date of acquisition were:

Plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Amount due from a related party

Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Amounts due to related parties

Bank borrowing

Net identifiable assets acquired

Goodwill arising on acquisition:
Consideration for acquisition

Add: Non-controlling interests
Less: Net identifiable assets acquired

Goodwill

Net cash inflow in arising on acquisition

— Cash and cash equivalents

4. XBEH (B

SZE—NEFUBE L BB 2 AR

HED L WIE (B

RIERHBIIRRENTRIEERE
BAFES:

2019
Fair value
AFE
HK$’000
FEIT
[ B B 5% 45 61
EAEEE 1,134

75 26
FE W B 5 AR 3 Be ELh FE WL BR =X 9,014
FEW — 2 RE AN 28 14,513
U —FE M B A E]

— IR MR R 2 7N IE 261
BERIREEEY 282
FE B 5 AR B EL A FE (S BR =X (13,741)
HEaE (1,134)
FESRRB A 278 (5,217)
R1TEE (4,440)
FrBER eI EEFE 759
WEEEENEE
WEERE -
o IEEER MR 6,764
BT R eT R B E R E (759)
mE 6,005

HK$’000
FBEIT

RIBEFEENIRESRA T
- RENIREEEY 282
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Deemed step acquisition from associate to subsidiary in
2019 (Continued)

Impairment testing

The goodwill of HK$6,005,000 arose from the deemed step
acquisition is allocated to the cash generating unit (‘CGU”)
of Beijing Feiying, together with the right-of-use assets of
HK$1,144,000, for the impairment testing conducted by
management as at 31 December 2019 according to HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets”.

The recoverable amount of Beijing Feiying CGU was
determined using the value-in-use calculation based on
cash flow projections from financial budgets approved
by the management covering a four-year period. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculation were those
regarding the discount rate, operating margin and growth
rates and revenue during the period as below.

Discount rate 20%
-7% to 6%

20% drop in first
year and 5%

Operating margin

Growth rates with
the four-year period
growth thereon

The discount rate used was pre-tax and reflected specific
risks relating to this CGU. The operating margin and growth
rates were determined based on the past experience.

Under the value-in-use calculation, the recoverable amount
of the Beijing Feiying CGU as at 31 December 2019 was
determined at approximately HK$1,200,000 which was
less than the carrying amount of the CGU by approximately
HK$6,005,000. Impairment loss of HK$6,005,000 was
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill
allocated to the Beijing Feiying CGU in the profit or loss
during 2019.

4. XBEH (B

SZE—NEFUBE L BB 2 AR

AR B

MEEER-_Z—hAE+ZA=+—H
EEEREBES B ELFEIHK EER
BEIETHREANAMS  RBAD P IKE
EAERIE 26,005,000 TERERES
1,144,000 T D EEE IR RENIR
TELBEA (BREELBA) -

ERREREEEEMUNATWEIEZEAT
EREAREEBMENRENFHNYM
BREMSRERERAINEREES
BET -EREBEAENRBRRHE
MR EERAN T B RRD kW E
BRABYRER > U0 NPTt o

ARIR = 20%
R E T%ZE6%
MERARREREE BHE T F20%

REBIBRES%

FRAEMRBRRZRRAN I RREZFE
ELBEUARNBERR K2 mf XK
BEXRDNIRBEBEERERE

RiEFEREBEEHNE tERERSEL
BARZE—AE+ZBE=+—HHT
IR Bl & 388 T A%91,200,0008 70 IR
TELEBMNNKRBEEEALA6,005,000%
T BRI E—NFNERN R ERSE
6,005,000 7T LUR/D D B B IE R AR EIR
TELBEMNNEHEREE
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34.

35.

36.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Deemed step acquisition from associate to subsidiary in
2019 (Continued)

Impairment testing (Continued)

As a result of the above deemed step acquisition, goodwill
of HK$6,005,000 arose, being the difference between the
consideration and the fair values of identifiable net assets
acquired less the non-controlling interests. However,
management considered that such goodwill was not
expected to generate any economic benefit or cash inflow
in the future. Therefore, the recoverable amount of this
CGU was less than the carrying amount which led to the
recognition of goodwill impairment in 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2020

and 2019 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as below:

Contracted, but not provided for B4 BREHEE B

— leasehold improvements —HEEE

34.

35.

36.

EBas @

SZE—NEFUBE L BB 2 AR

AEANS

HREMBADT KRB EEE 2
6,005,00078 7t > BP0 8 22 4% U B8 BT 3 71
BEFERFERER AFEZEREC
Rm BEEERA EHREREEEEAF
BELEAAKCEMNmNIRERA AL
AREEFBEMUNR T —AENT UG
SHEENREE BEREREERE.

HARR

R-B_SER-_S—AE+ZH
=B AEELEEARREE-

B KE

RZEZEFRERZE—NAEFE+ZA
T+ HUIERRGEHMERRTIEEE

ZAREMNEREENT :
The Group
TEEH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
- 202
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(a) Amounts due from related parties

7. BRIR@EF G E

38. ffl

Current Assets MENEE
— An entity controlled by —— RN B AR IEERK
Mr. Dai, a non-controlling % B8 3 S A

shareholder of a subsidiary
(Notes i & ii)

- Mr. Gao Fei (Note i) — S mAEE (k)

RYEEE (MaEiRii)

rEBAMEEECERESEEEART
MAEEEE (T518)) -S| 2EERR
EAZERIZESRAEREESRAFTA
RFBHEIZHA BEREERERZRA
BEZLEROS MR AEBEFTEZ
ME— B ERRES BIFHRE MR-

FEBETHZMBAREREYHTE
HRFEEzEREBERKBHTEIKE -
ZEWB AR ARF A ZEE LR
AR KB EIHR HEIREHREM
BE o A ERYZRIRENFTEI 2 ME—
EREHIEEHRR

BATZIRE

(a) BERFHEALZHE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTRET THET
- 8,960

- 15,889

- 24,849
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38. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from related parties (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii

The balances were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

In April 2020, a tripartite settlement agreement were
entered among the Group, Mrs. Dai and the entity
controlled by Mr. Dai (the “Borrower”). Mrs. Dai agreed
to settle RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,960,000) to
the Group on behalf the Borrower. Accordingly, the debt
was fully settled by Mrs. Dai in cash in the same month.

(b) Amounts due to related parties

Current Liabilities Vi p=NE
— Entities controlled by a non- ——RNB AR IFER
controlling shareholder of a BRERIE B RS
subsidiary (Note i) (B 1)
— Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”) — 2 NESRE (TRIE4ED)
(Notes i and iv) (Bft 5Ei Reiv)
- Ms. Xiao (Notes i & ii) —@mu+ (M sEikii)
Non-current Liabilities ElEi=NE
— Mr. Lau (Notes iii and iv) — 2154 (e stiikiv)

Notes:

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

Ms. Xiao is considered as a related party because she is
Mr. Lau’s spouse.

38. ABEBANLZIKE (&

(a) FEWETEANLZ#IE ()
fe5E -

() RHESEEF THEREERE
%O

(i) MIZ_ZFEMH -KAEBE FHEA
REREEFHNER (TMERAL 5T
Y=FEERE -AXARBARME
FABAREREEARNES,000,000
7t (& 128,960,000 7T) ° KELL
BERABRBRAURSREEHEE
}%o

(b) BEfEHEALZHE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAEIT
- 4,412
11,419 15,344
- 5,040
11,419 24,796
28,416 12,224
39,835 37,020
MI5E
) HEHRAERE THBREREX
B8

i) FHRLTERHPEEZERBMKR
m—RBEAL
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38. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b) Amounts due to related parties (Continued)

(c)

Notes: (Continued)

i)

On 31 December 2018, Mr. Lau advanced
HK$13,680,000 (equivalent to RMB12,000,000) to
the Group which is due on 31 December 2021. The
borrowing is carried at amortised cost using an imputed
interest rate of 4.75% per annum. The imputed interest
portion of HK$1,814,000 was credited to other reserve
under the equity attributable to owners of the Company.

On 10 July 2020, Mr. Lau advanced HK$15,500,000
(equivalent to US$2,000,000) to the Group which is
due on 31 December 2021. The borrowing is carried
at amortised cost using an imputed interest rate of
4.65% per annum. The imputed interest portion of
HK$1,042,000 was credited to other reserve under the
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

On 31 December 2020, the due date of both advances
from Mr. Lau have been extended to 28 February 2022.

Upon the completion of the Rights Issue exercise on
10 February 2021, both advances from Mr. Lau of
HK$28,416,000 under non-current liabilities and the
partial balance approximately of HK$3,029,000 under
current liabilities are set-off with amount required to be
paid by Mr. Lau for his subscription allotment under the
Rights Issue exercise.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of
the key management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

REHAE R
BERR BN

IIV-F

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E_Z_—F

BB RMIEE

F+ZRA=t+—HLEE

3. FABEALZIKE @

(b) ETFEALZHE ()
MiEE (4D

i)

AZE—-NE+ZBA=+—H0 %
SetE ) A % B #413,680,0005 7T
(HEW AR¥12,000,0007T)
Aﬁé:ﬁ——fﬁ+—)%:+—a§u

EEFERLENNESEL475%
Tt(%iﬁﬁﬁﬁkK)\,ﬁE HE R BB
1,814,0008 Tt A AT HES AFE
iz HthEds o

AZECEFELATH BLER
REE #115,500,0008 7T FEER
2,000,000%7m) "ER T —F
+= Jﬂ +—BERERERGE
BHESEL5%LBHMAALR
HER B ED1,042,0008 551 A
NATVEB ANEIERET Z Hihfks
o

N _EEE+"_HB=+—H%
HERMIMEBRZINHHBE
112 === < = e o AW = I

B —F B+ HEAMHE
BoREINLCEBFABHEFEEAET
228,416,000 T MBI BEET
%33,029,0008 T 2 Bf D M BR 2 B
o HEBSEMRE R HRIE T
RIBECE PR A N 2 RIAARIREH

(c) TEEEANSZFHHY

FRAEERHEHMEEEEAENE
ZENEIT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

TRET THET

4,264 4,243

64 56

4,328 4,299
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39. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

At 1 January 2020

Changes from cash flows:
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repayment of bank borrowing
Advance from a related party

Repayment 1o a related party

Total changes from financing cash flows:

Other changes:
Addition of lease liabilities

Write off of lease liabilities

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Imputed interest on loan from
a related party

Imputed interest (Note 38(bjiii))

Deemed disposal from subsidiary to

associate (Note 33(a))

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33(b))

Exchange adjustments

Total other changes

At 31 December 2020

RERTEE
RE—LBEALZEN
BE-RREALZTA
BERSREZHEE
Hth 2
MERERR
MHHEEE
BEARZAERX

RE—LBEALZERZ
fEEHE

HER S (E38(0)(i)

feHEARZBERTZ
RIEHE (M5E33())

HEMBAT (H:33()

RIB-ZE+-B=1—H

39. SREAGZAIRE 7

75 =

ERZME

BEmMEBEHESC8EHER
Amounts
due to
related Bank Lease
parties borrowing liabilities Total
FEft
MEAL
ZHE RITEE HEaR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR THER
37,020 4,480 2,014 43,514
- - (1,067) (1,067)
= (4,480) - (4,480)
39,492 - - 39,492
(26,755) - - (26,755)
12,737 (4,480) (1,067) 7,190
- - 940 940
- - (1,489) (1,489)
- - 54 54
933 - - 933
(1,042) - - (1,042)
(5,016) - - (5,016)
(4,468) - - (4,468)
(329) - 4 (325)
(9,922) - (491) (10,413)
39,835 - 456 40,291
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39. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39, :REAL L RS R (&
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: EREIHEL 2 EBYHE . (B
(Continued)
Amounts
due to
related Bank Lease
parties borrowing liabilities Total
ey
BEAL
2R RITEE HEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEx TEr
t 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE—F—H 23,167 - 93 23,260
Changes from cash flows: RENSLE.
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMERR - - (551) (551)
Advance from a related party REFEALZER 11,401 - - 11,401
Repayment to a related party BEEEALZIE (2,757) - - (2,757)
Total changes from financing cash flows:  HER& RS EHBE | 8,644 - (551) 8,093
Other changes: Hit2g .
Addition of lease liabilities REMEER - - 1,303 1,308
Interest expense on lease liabilties HEREZHERS - - 29 29
Imputed interest on loan from RE—LHEALZ
a related party BERZEERE 576 - - 576
Business combination £RaH 4,995 4,440 1,134 10,569
Exchange adjustments ERAE (362) 40 6 (316)
Total other changes Htegan 5,209 4,480 2,472 12,161

At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE+-B=1—H 37,020 4,480 2,014 43,514
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

40. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Non-current Asset ETREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RRB AT ZIRE
Current Assets RENEE
Other receivables EAh e W R =R

Amount due from FEl—REHB AR zRIE

a subsidiary

40.

ERATINR_E_EF+_AH

=+—BHBHHRIR

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY
Current Liabilities mEAR
Other payables HME R

Amounts due to
subsidiaries

BAWEARZMIEA

Net Current Liabilities RENBEIFEE
Total Assets less Current MEERTEARE
Liabilities
Capital and Reserves BRRKiHEE
Share capital [N
Reserves &
Deficit &5 4t

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Siu Ying
FNERE
CHAIRMAN

Ey

EF

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E FHT FHET
- 26,726
1,805 213
6,344 20,279
11 13
8,160 20,505
4,224 2,346
52,118 53,061
56,342 55,407
(48,182) (34,902)
(48,182) (8,176)
29 91,778 91,778
41 (139,960) (99,954)
(48,182) (8,176)
RRESE
Mr. Wang Yu
FREE
DIRECTOR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

41. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 1 January 2019

Loss for the year

Exchange differences arising
on translation

At 31 December 2019

Loss for the year

Exchange differences arising
on translation

At 31 December 2020

RZEB-NE-R—-H

FERR

HAEMELZERER

RIE-h&

tZA=+-H

FEFR

HAEMELZERER

IIV-F

41. xR T HE

Share  Contributed  Translation Share option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
ki EE BEARR hERE BRERE RiEH wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TER THEL TAL TAL
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii) (Note iv)
(M) (Hi3ii) (M) (MisEiv)
417,391 40,948 39,288 - (595,515) (97,888)
- - - - (2,469) (2,469)
- - 403 - - 403
417,391 40,948 39,691 - (697,984) (99,954)
- - - - (37,172) (37,172)
- - (2,834) - - (2,834)
417,391 40,948 36,857 - (635,156) (139,960)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

41.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(i

(il)

(iv)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for
share capital in excess of nominal value.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the
amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the
time of the group reorganisation.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising
on retranslating the Company’s financial statement into
presentation currency.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which were all lapsed during the year 2018,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transaction in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

M. ERBEHEE &

5k -

(i)

(ii

(i)

B aBiERERATEBLEE LR
Ho

ERBBAERNBRBRARENE
ERZRERRESTHARTNERE
BB R DU BB T AT R0 2 E E R A
DU e it S E AR B 2817 1,000,0008% &
IR IR RIEME 2 Z58 -

MEREERERRMBREERRE
R EEMEL 2w, KB

BREMFBEBEERHIN -2 -N\F
ERRBZBREZAFE FERES
MBREMFATURD HERTRZR
FZEFTBERE—S @i
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

are incorporated with limited liability as follows:

Name of subsidiary

MEARAE

Express Fortune
Holdings Limited

Express Fortune Limited

REARAH

Fortune (Shanghai) International
Trading Co., Ltd.
RE (LB ERESERAT

Sifa Mining

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

BT

RBERE

MBI RSB HMER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100
REBEUHE ZERI100ET
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred

HK$5,000,000 (Note a)

S BER10BT
BRERIEIERN

5,000,0007 75

(Mizta)

Wholly foreign owned US$28,100,000
enterprise established in
the PRC

RPBEMINSIERERZE 28,100,000% 7%

Sino-foreign equity joint RMB1,000,000
ventures established in
the PRC

TRARBI AL I BRI

REGBLE

AE#1,000,0007%

42. TEHNMB AT ER

KRB EEMBRE
RAT) FIBWT :

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

EARMRE

BRITREEE

HMERZ LA

2020 2019
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
50.8% 50.8%

HBEMRILIZE

Principal activity

TEEH

Investment holding
BREER

Provision of management
services

REBERE

Trading in mobile phones

Exploration and extraction
of mining resources

HRKAREEER



206

China Fortune Holdings Limited
FEREERERAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR IR R ML

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continueq)

Name of subsidiary

WEARLE

Eagles Fund Technology
Investment Limited

EEESRERERBRAR

Zhuhai Reminda

KEERE

Zhejiang Aoying

RS

Chongaing Yuanjia

EBE

il

TRREGEREERAR
(“Beijing Feiying”)

LRREGENKARAT
(DERARE)

Fortune Telecom Supply Chain
Limited

REEEHEEERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

SRS/ BRI 3

Hong Kong
BB

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in
the PRC

RPBRINPIEELE
ik

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in
the PRC

NG aIE AV sfsbiN
RELERE

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in
the PRC

NG aIE AV ofsbiN
RELERE

Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in

the PRC

NERIE AR bl

Hong Kong

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BET
RERRE/
A&

Ordinary HK$10,000
EiER%10,00078 7T

RMB10,000,000

AR %10,000,0007%

RMB10,000,000

AR %10,000,0007%

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007%

RMB40,000,000

AE#40,000,0007T

Ordinary HK$1,000

HER1,00087T

42.

FENMWBARER (&

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

YNGIL
BRITRAEE
ARmERZLH

2020 2019
100% 100%
51% 51%
70% 70%
- 51%
- 33.5%
(Notes b and ¢)
(MiEEDRzC)
51% 51%

Principal activity

TEEH

Investment holding
REER

Trading in mobile phones

BERYEE

Trading in mobile phones

BERYEE

Trading in mobile phones

BERYEE

Trading in second-hand
mobile phones and
provision of marketing
services

BE_FRHEFREMR
MBS EERS

Trading in mobile
phones and related
accessories

BEERSEARERLNS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. TBERNRELATZE &)

(Continueq)
Notes:

(@) The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the respective company or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(b)  The directors of the Company assessed that the Group had
the ability to direct the relevant activities of Beijing Feiying
as one shareholder of Beijing Feiying undertaken to vote in
concert with the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
since 27 December 2019. It enables the Group to control
the additional 33.5% voting rights in the shares of Beijing
Feiying (67% voting rights in aggregated). On 1 September
2020, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Gao
has resolved to terminate the Acting-in-Concert Agreement
entered into between them. Upon the termination of the
Acting-in-Concert Agreement with Mr. Gao, the Group no
longer has the control of Beijing Feiying. As a result, Beijing
Feiying has been accounted for as an associate of the Group
since 1 September 2020.

(c)  On 4 June 2020, Beijing Feiying completed the reduction of
registered capital in same proportion for all of its shareholders
from RMB40,000,000 to RMB15,000,000.

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in
Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

MsE -

(@) Lﬂyf’\ﬂ’f‘ﬂtTfﬁmTuﬁﬂyﬁ%ﬁ’/}j

ZREINBMBEMADEARREAGE

SHHERRAGHANG ERRANF
BR2HEDIKZER -

(b) ARBESTE AEEAERENFEILR
REMNAERER RRAILTERREN—%
BREEABRAABDNZEZEWBE LR R
TE—NFE+_A_+tHE-—BEE
EERTAREBEFIEARERS 5
9h33.5% ML = (BET67%M R ERE) ©
RIEZEFNA—H AEE—HEE2E
MBABRSEERBRIEFETILN
—BiTERE RIS S ET I —
TEHEE AEEREERIIRRE &
FlE-AL  IRREBZZ-ZFNA
—BHEFAAEEHSE R B AR

(c) AT _EFNANBH ERREEE
2REREZBMERILLATHASTME
A AR %40,000,0007THI B E AR
15,000,0007T ©

NN B B B Express Fortune Holdings
Limitedi# s M EXFIR 2 PR B EfhiEz
HHRAATBZEFR

FxExpress Fortune Holdings Limited® 2
EEBREERIN LT EXEBHNEH
AL, BRI BLASE o

EMBRABDNFRAFENEMFEITE
EREHRES -

EERRINEDEERRBLEBZEE

NEEFEBEEAREZLATANEBR

Bl BERA B HMNBLAR ZH1E
SLERBENBR R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

43.

44.

MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidation
financial statement, there is no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered into or

subsisted during the financial year.
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

= AMBEWEARR AT (“Sifa Mining”), a 50.8% owned

subsidiary, %X BMEREBMKREBR QS (“Zhuhai
Reminda”), a 51% owned subsidiary, # 1R%E(E SR

BRAB(“Zhejiang Aoying”),
Telefortune Group Holdings Limited, a 51% owned

a 70% owned subsidiary,

subsidiary of the Company and Fortune Telecom Supply
Chain Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company,
have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) as at 31
December 2020. Summarised financial information in
relation to the NCI of Sifa Mining, Zhuhai Reminda, Zhejiang
Aoying, Chongging Yuanjia, Beijing Feiying, Telefortune
Group and Fortune Telecom Supply Chain, before intra-
group eliminations, are presented below:

43.

44.

EENRZ -RHHAAGHNZEKX
]

PRéx S PR RMISE38PTIREE I IO A
MHFESEMETARDEBCITILNF
BZARBRERITNDERRTAESR
REPHEEEA#GD TRERIBR =
HMERRZ 2HHEH -

FEFEH M

NRZEZZEF+ZHA=+—8 > AR B
B50.8%EmsMBAE R AR EEE
BR S (MREEX)) BEAE1%ERZ
MEB AR ST ERERBMNRBERAA
(TKRBERE)) HEBT0%Em 2B
"ﬂ‘}}ﬁsl:ﬁ‘ﬂ** EEREERAR (ML
)~ %&Em%f‘f&izﬁﬁﬁ@?%?%
IPEHREBEQ}T&%E&%*& gl NN
BREEBEHEHERABAEREAIE
ZHlE R (TIEERI R - BRAtREE
BEKEERE-NIBE - BEEESE
IETRRE-EREEREREEHEES
RABFFEFIMETNETERR AR
BHEm 2 MBERNBEZIWT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Sifa Mining

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

As at 31 December

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated non-controlling interests

BE+"_A=+—HLEFE

W

FEBR

B

EEH

LUN

C

DEEIFEFEREZ IR

MIFER RS ZRE

BE+"_HA=+—HLEFE

REEBRE
(FrA3) HE

nR+—A=+—H

neas
BfEFHR

KRB

44, JEEBIM#ELS (&
EBEE

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

(6,401) (5,786)

(11,352) (4,805)

(3,150) (2,847)

8,221 (325)

2,408 3,678

(81,680) (72,715)

(79,272) (69,037)

(39,002) (33,965)
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44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Zhuhai Reminda

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash used in operating activities

As at 31 December

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated non-controlling interests

B#E+"_HA=+—HLEE

FEBE

ESERIL N
DEEIFEHEED 2 B8
MIFERIMERSI T ZRE
BE+_A=+—HLEFE
REEBPMARE
R+-A=+—H
RBEE

FRBEE

neas

I=REVE R

e e Ny i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MR IR R ML

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

44. JEERIEEE (B

BEELE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
— 17
(28) (1,076)
(318) (994)
(14) (527)
() (29)
76 74
226 213
(5,234) (4,901)
(4,932) (4,614)
(2,416) (2,261)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Zhejiang Aoying

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities
Cash used in investing activities
Cash generated from
financing activity

Net cash (outflows)/inflows

As at 31 December
Current assets

Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

44. JEERIEEE (B

AT R
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HE+-_A=+—HILEE
Y& &= 3,933 103,437
FE (F8) EH (8,979) 668
2EHERWA (3,992) 601
PDEEIFZEFMEER 2
(B518) /& A (1,194) 200
BIEEGIEEES T ZRE - -
HE+_-_A=+—HLEE
SRR (FrA) P3RS
(76) 148
LEEETARE - (92)
MEEHAEERS
- 3
Be Cnd) RAFE (76) 59
®W+=ZA=+—H
RENEE 50 4,032
ERBEE - 33
mEIEE (272) (294)
BEEFE (222) 3,771
REIEEHIEE R (774) 423
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 44, JEIEHIERERS (2

Chongqing Yuanjia BEEFEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FET
For the period from 1 January to —B—BEhABZ+AhB/
29 September/1 January to —B—HE+ZB=+—H
31 December HAM
Revenue W = - 6
Loss for the year FERIE = (7,127)
Total comprehensive income SEAAWA 38 (7,239)
Loss allocated to NCI PDEEIEZEFIERR 2 18 = (3,492)
Dividends paid to NCI BIEEFI RS2 RS - -
For the period from 1 January to —B—HBEhABZ=+hB
29 September/1 January to —B—HE+=ZB=+—H
31 December HARE
Cash used in operating activities KEFHPMARE = (5,676)
Cash generated from NEEHMEIRE
investing activities - 2,240
Net cash outflows RE M FEE = (3,436)
As at 29 September/31 December WHHBAZ+hB,~
+ZB=+—H
Current assets MENEE - 13,206
Non-current assets ERBEE - -
Current liabilities mENBE = (4,632)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = (5,600)
Net assets BEEFE - 2,973
Accumulated non-controlling interests & 5t JEIZ= 6 MR & - (3,565)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) A4, JEEEEIMERESS (42
Beijing Feiying IERFE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
For the period from BH—B—BEZEhBA—H/
1 January to 1 September/27 +=ZB=+tHE=+—H
to 31 December HARE
Revenue & 1,216 -
Loss for the year FEEIE (784) (10)
Total comprehensive income SEAAWA (791) 35
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIEEFIEER 2 F1E (521) (6)
Dividends paid to NCI BIEEFIE DT ZRE - -
For the period from wW—B—BZEhA—B
1 January to 1 September/27 +-A=-++tHE=+—H
to 31 December HARE
Net cash inflows HWEMAFEE - -

As at 1 September/31 December WhB—H +=ZB=+—H

Current assets MENEE - 24,307
Non-current assets EREEE - 1,206
Current liabilities mENaE - (24,287)
Non-current liabilities JEREEaRE = (469)
Net assets BEFE - 757

Accumulated non-controlling interests 22 5t JEIZ & M %5 - 6,762
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 44, JEEESIERELS ()

Telefortune Group REEHE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
For the period ended 31 December/ & ZE+_HB=+—HILH/~
period from 28 January to —BZ+N\BE
31 December +ZB=+—HHM
Revenue e = -
Loss for the year FEEIE (1) (22)
Total comprehensive income 2EBIA (1) (22)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIEEFIEE D 2 F1E - (11)
Dividends paid to NCI BIEEFI RS2 RS - -
For the period ended 31 December/ HEZE+_HA=+—HIEHR,~
period from 28 January to —BZ+N\BE
31 December +=ZB=+—HHM
Cash (used in)/generated from e EE (FrA) g
operating activities RERE (50) 40
Cash generated from KREFHFABRERE
investing activities - 10
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Re ) /TR FEE (50) 50
As at 31 December ®W+=ZB=+—H
Current assets MBEE 5 55
Current liabilities mEAaRA (18) (67)
Net Liabilities aERH (13) (12)

Accumulated non-controlling interests

KRR

(L))

()
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 44, JEESI RS (2
Fortune Telecom Supply Chain RIEE(s1HEH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET THET

For the year ended 31 December &HE+_A=+—BHLEE

Revenue Wz 9,176 N/A T
Profit for the year FE A 301 N/A T
Total comprehensive income ZEBIA 301 N/A 38
Profit allocated to NCI DEEFFETIM T 2 EF] 148 N/A T3
Dividends paid to NCI BIEEFIEER T2 RE - N/A %A

For the year ended 31 December #HZEZE+_-_B=+—HILEE

Cash generated from RS EHAERE

operating activities 24 N/A A
Cash generated from KEFBMERE

investing activities 1 N/A R4 A
Net cash inflows HEmAFEE 25 N/A 4 A
As at 31 December ®W+=ZB=+—H
Current assets TMENE E 759 N/A 48 F3
Current liabilities mEas (2,371) N/A 3
Net Liabilities BEEE (1,612) N/A 38 A

Accumulated non-controlling interests & 5t JEIZ=H MR & 148 N/A 38
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#Z_E " TFE+_F=+—HIFE

45.

IMPACT OF THE CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019
(“COVID-19”)

After the COVID-19 outbreak in January 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the countries.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 is developing the pessimistic
sentiment regarding the macroeconomic on the worldwide
wholesale and retail environment, which would foreseeably
have an adverse impact on the Group’s business. It has
been intensifying and spreading across the PRC. It also has
been weighing on the PRC wholesale and retail markets.
There is an ongoing concerns regarding the development
of mobile phone markets, which hinders customers making
sales order. Moreover, in view of the weakening wholesale
and retail markets, customers would tend to make orders
with lower average selling price, which would possibly
lower the Group’s gross profit margin. The directors of the
Company will pay close attention to the latest development
and evaluate its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

45. —F

—hERBRFESK
(TCoVID-19]1) & &

COVID-19BBR_E-_EF—F 8%
B —RY B REGEE A ST
EZBEEH o

COVID-19R I8 3 < R B S E R 2 IR HL 3
REERGHNAEBRBEETER KAE
RRRRBHFERMNEFEX TN E-
WEREEEPESEEARME S 7%
PEMERTETSENEN - HEEE
ETMBERFERARE tMARER
TEHESTBE N BERBERTED
BR% BERRMER TETHEEEMERN
B ERNERBEEEEN XK -ART
EERBYRIRMERLFGEEE
EREMBRRREEREZZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &Z L _ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Capital Reorganisation

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed a capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”), which
involved: (i) the share consolidation whereby every ten
(10) authorised and issued existing shares of HK$0.10 be
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of HK$1.00;
(i) the capital reduction whereby the issued share capital of
the Company be reduced by: (a) rounding down the number
of consolidated shares in the issued share capital of the
Company to the nearest whole number by cancelling any
fraction of a consolidated share in the issued share capital
of the Company arising from the share consolidation; and
(b) cancelling the paid up capital of the Company to the
extent of HK$0.99 on each of the then issued consolidated
shares such that the par value of each issued consolidated
share be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01; and (i) the
share subdivision whereby every authorised but unissued
existing share of HK$0.10 be sub-divided into ten (10)
adjusted shares of HK$0.01 (the “Adjusted Shares”). The
Capital Reorganisation was completed on 11 January 2021.

Further details regarding the Capital Reorganisation were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 10
November 2020, 25 November 2020, 7 December 2020
and 7 January 2021 and the circular dated 15 December
2020.

Rights Issue

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$48.6 million additional capital, before
the Set-off Arrangement with amount due to Mr. Lau
and relevant expenses, by way of the rights issue (the
“Rights Issue”), by issuing 91,777,944 rights shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.53 per rights share on the basis
of one (1) rights share for every one (1) adjusted shares.
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46.

47.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE (Continuead)

Rights Issue (Continued)

On 10 February 2021, a total of 91,777,944 shares have
been allotted under the Rights Issue. The net proceeds
raised from the Rights Issue are approximately HK$15.6
million after the Set-off Arrangement with amount of
HK$31.4 million due to Mr. Lau and relevant expense of
HK$1.6 million. Details were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 10 November 2020, the circular of
the Company dated 15 December 2020 and the prospectus
of the Company dated 19 January 2021.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March
2021.
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RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income, gains and losses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Share of results of associates
Write back of interest payables
Write back of business tax payables upon
deregistration of a subsidiary
Recovery of bad debts
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of inventories
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of mining right
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of right-of-use assets
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of prepayments paid to suppliers
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of amounts due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary
Impairment loss for amount due from
an associate
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other receivables
Recovery of impairment loss on trade and
other receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables
Gain on deregistration of an associate
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on derecognised right-of-use assets
Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

e
HEAK

et
8l ONN 69
HERDHENE
THER
PEBME AR ZEE
IR BT
FHE-BRBATER
BOEGEXE
ez AR
nEERIZAERE

MAREERERDZ
AEBE
PRTERERD R ERR

REERRERDZ
HERE
MEREEERDZ
AEBE
REHEENZ
BARERD ZAERE
BEREZEE
REN—EHNEAR—%
JRERIE R R 2 AR Z
AEBE
Bl —RBEATHEZ
AERE
FLIEUE 2 IR H A FEURER R
B HEBBRD
I IfE s 8 7 BRI K
HtEWERT A ERR
TAIE U E 2 R E At PR R R
R ZAERE
FHE-BREAR 2 Wa
HENRBAR 2 WEE
RIFLEMBAR Z W
BB EAREEZ e
RMEME

FRFTSIRAT (B510) /A
FrsmER/ (BX)

FE (58 /&f
FEh

KRABEAA
JREERI M

Annual Report 2020
—T_TER

Financial Summary
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E 4

Year ended 31 December

BE+-BA=+—HLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT TET TAET FTET THET
110,638 7,436 216,104 108,455 80,949
(108,801) (7,147) (213,966) (107,444) (80,558)
1,837 289 2,138 1,011 391
2,257 903 (1,223) 350 243
(2,645) (400) (1) (20) (334)
(15,242) (14,718) (14,928) (17,266) (15,484)
(905) (6) (647) - -
- - 11,922 - -
- - - - 891
- - 14,083 - -
- - (1,221) (95) -
(6,340) (2,614) - - -
(84,240) (174,589) - - -
- (8,965) - (5,166) -
- - - (831) (431)
- (24,903) - - -
- - - (6,005) -
- - - - (386)
- - - - (224)
- - 363 118 66
- - - - 1,225
(798) (1,627 (23) (4,256) (3,837)
- - - 24 =
- - - - 3,125
- - - - 6,269
- - - - 468
(1,278) (1,208) - (605) (1,153)
(107,354) (227,838) 10,453 (32,741) (9,171)
21,059 41,116 (148) (35) 4,547
(86,295) (186,722) 10,305 (32,776) (4,624)
(49,807) (111,714) 7,799 (26,093) 219
(36,488) (75,008) 2,506 (6,683) (4,843)
(86,295) (186,722) 10,305 (32,776) (4,624)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEEAE

Total liabilities BREHE

Equity attributable to owners of KABEB NEEES
the Company

Non-controlling interests FEERI R

BEERERE

At 31 December

nw+ZA=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET FET
246,543 44,876 85,245 70,937 39,335
(102,131) (50,927) (77,809) (89,562) (64,627)
144,412 (6,051) 7,436 (18,625) (25,292)
106,663 31,409 40,587 13,992 16,763
37,749 (37,460) (33,151) (82,617) (42,055)
144,412 (6,051) 7,436 (18,625) (25,292)
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